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On Our Cover
We give tribute to our former Chairman,
Ambassador Alfonso T. Yuchengco, a true
visionary, a man ahead of his time. EEI is
honored to have been instrumental in building
some of the structures of YGC companies
such as the RCBC Plaza Towers, RCBC
Savings Bank, Mapua Institute of Technology,
Malayan Colleges, and the ETY Building, as
well as structures which the late Ambassador
helped build like the De La Salle University
Don Enrique T. Yuchengco Hall.

FOR THE YEAR
Revenues
Equity from Associates
EBITDA
Net Income (Loss)
Earnings Per Share

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

14,217.48
431.12
1,716.11
978.82
0.9445

11,331.57
529.10
1,622.23
915.69
0.8835

17,580.98
423.80
1,814.84
918.27
0.8861

18,402.16
(676.31)
1,096.30
202.73
0.1956

13,590.05
(1,316.13)
112.93
(847.70)
-0.8180

AT YEAR END
Total Assets
Total Liabilities
Total Equity
Book Value Per Share

12,401.83
7,387.95
5,013.88
4.84

13,600.96
7,817.84
5,783.12
5.58

18,352.37
11,692.92
6,659.46
6.43

22,471.73
15,690.49
6,781.24
6.54

20,203.09
14,359.37
5,843.72
5.64
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DEBT-EQUITY RATIO

Ambassador Yuchengco personifies our vision
of being a Builder of a Better Future.
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Ambassador

Alfonso T. Yuchengco

A TRIBUTE TO OUR LATE CHAIRMAN

He was a man of honor. A distinguished
diplomat, a successful businessman, a
passionate philanthropist, an ardent educator,
and a man of integrity.

(FEBRUARY 6, 1923-APRIL 15, 2017)

Ambassador Alfonso T. Yuchengco, through his numerous
successes in business, foreign relations, and socio-civic
organizations, made a significant imprint not only in the
various sectors and businesses he handled throughout his life,
but also in the lives of millions of Filipinos.
Ambassador Yuchengco, fondly called “AY” by his friends and
colleagues, lived an exemplary life, reflective of a true man
of honor and a forward-thinking leader. He was the pivotal
figure and founder of the Yuchengco Group of Companies
(YGC), one of the country’s biggest conglomerates with an
impressive business portfolio. The conglomerate stands solid
on four major flagship corporations that mirror AY’s vision
of putting up companies designed to help move the country
forward.
The RCBC Group stands at the helm of YGC. Alongside
RCBC, one of the country’s major universal banks, is RCBC
Savings Bank -- the retail banking arm of RCBC. The group
also includes RCBC Bankard, the bank’s credit card servicing
entity. Following the RCBC Group is Malayan Group of
Insurance Companies led by Malayan Insurance Company,
Inc. currently the leading non-life insurer in the country,
Bankers Assurance Corporation (BAC), and First Nationwide
Assurance Corporation (FNAC). The third pillar of YGC is
Grepalife (Great Pacific Life Assurance Corp.); one of the
pioneer life insurance companies in the country, now Sunlife
Grepa Financial. Completing YGC’s flagship companies is
House of Investments (HI), the first investment house in
the country which encompasses the other industries under
2
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the YGC such as education, handled by the Mapua Institute
of Technology and its subsidiaries, construction through
EEI Corporation, car dealerships with Honda and Isuzu, and
finally, property management.
Being a passionate philanthropist, Alfonso T. Yuchengco also
put up the AY Foundation, YGC’s socio-civic arm whose
vision is to help uplift Filipino lives through various CSR
(corporate social responsibility) projects. Part of his mandate
for every YGC member is to give 1% of their profits to the AY
Foundation to sustain multiple humanitarian efforts.
Alfonso T. Yuchengco’s natural ability to weave success in
all of his ventures was already evident in his earlier years.
Born in February 6, 1923 to Don Enrique Yuchengco and
Maria Tiaoqui, the young Alfonso showed immense interest
in commerce by venturing into his own small business. As a
teenage entrepreneur, he bought wholesale soap products
from a soap factory owned by his father’s friend and started
a small buy-and-sell business that he ran independently and,
later on, with the help of his other schoolmates. This early
start proved the incontestable fact that the young Alfonso
was born to lead and groomed to face every challenge with
head held high, and with one thing in mind: success.
After his father passed, Alfonso took on the mantle as head
of the family business in 1953. It was then that he began to
show his strong business acumen. He assumed management
of China Insurance and Surety Co., owned and founded by his
father Don Enrique Yuchengco.
EEI CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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A TRIBUTE TO OUR LATE CHAIRMAN

After being shuttered due to the ravages of World War I,
China Insurance was rebuilt from the ground up. Alfonso
was a firsthand witness of how Don Enrique’s stewardship
allowed China Insurance to honor war claims ex-gratia,
though these were not within the scope of the conditions
of the policy. Alfonso inherited from his father the firm
belief that Filipinos needed an insurance company that they
could count on for fair dealings and speedy settlement of
just and valid claims. To support the social thrust to build
a Malay race identity in the Philippines, the business was
infused with fresh capital and became Malayan Insurance
Company, Inc. Under the stewardship of AY, Malayan grew
from a humble Binondo enterprise into a more thriving
Malayan Group of Insurance Companies, the leading
provider of non-life insurance products and services in the
Philippines. By this time, Alfonso T. Yuchengco had already
become a beacon of innovative thinking, having been one
of the first industrialists to delve into joint ventures with
local and international corporations.

Alfonso’s ventures expanded with the birth of Grepalife, one
of the earlier top life insurance companies in the country in
terms of assets and premium income. In 1959, he established
HI which delved into other ventures such as education. This
spurred the birth of iPeople which focuses on the academe,
having Mapua Institute and its subsidiaries as members. In
1993, another venture was added to HI’s roster, EEI Corporation, formerly Engineering Equipment, Inc., a thriving construction, machinery, and foundry corporation.
Years after, RDB (Rizal Development Bank) was born and was
renamed Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation (RCBC)
when it became a commercial bank in 1963. To date, RCBC
remains one of the major universal banks in the Philippines.
Thanks to the Ambassador’s trailblazing thinking, he also
pioneered the introduction of Diner’s Card in 1958, the first
credit card in the country. The coming years saw the imminent
success of Alfonso T. Yuchengco’s dreams as YGC continued
to grow into the iconic conglomerate it is known today.

“This is the legacy that Ambassador Alfonso T. Yuchengco
will always be remembered for—one that is founded on
leadership, built with integrity, and anchored on service.”

Going beyond the confines of his country, Alfonso T.
Yuchengco also gained recognition in the international arena.
He was Ambassador to China (1986-1988) and Japan (19951998), Presidential Special Envoy to Greater China, Japan and
Korea (2001), and Philippine Permanent Representative to
the United Nations (2001-2002). After two years, he was appointed Presidential Adviser on Foreign Relations. His active
role in business and foreign relations earned him international
recognition, several honorary doctorate degrees from renowned universities, honorary professorships, and several Hall
of Fame awards. Up to this day, Alfonso T. Yuchengco’s name
stands tall, mirroring what it means to be a true man of honor.
A bigger feather on his cap though, is his remarkable way of
touching the lives of others. Through his AY Foundation, he
was able to mount numerous socio development-focused
programs such as scholarships, medical missions, community
service awards, child welfare assistance, and national discipline
programs. AY Foundation was Ambassador Yuchengco’s
answer to his vision of uplifting the country, driven to pursue
the road to greatness.
Through the years, Alfonso T. Yuchengco has built his name
with ideals that will never falter, no matter what kind of
changes, challenges, and opportunities would come. Then and
now, this is the legacy that Ambassador Alfonso T. Yuchengco
will always be remembered for—one that is founded on
leadership, built with integrity, and anchored on service.
AY in front of the rising RCBC Plaza
4
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MESSAGE TO SHAREHOLDERS
2016 was a turning point year that brought changes and opportunities for EEI Corporation. The continued depressed
global oil and gas prices, the rise in construction projects in Southeast Asia, and the election of a new Philippine President
who prioritizes infrastructure spending all impacted EEI Corporation’s customers and the industry. EEI Corporation’s
multiple capabilities and experience across sectors and geographical regions allowed the Company to be flexible and
deliver value to our clients. Geographically, EEI Corporation’s business volume shifted from Saudi Arabia to domestic
market. Our new business development efforts focused on customer demand coming from the Philippines and the greater
ASEAN region. Sector-wise, the Company’s business activities shifted from constructing buildings to developing public
infrastructure.
EEI Corporation focuses on its fundamental strengths: quality and safety in construction services and methodology.
Our clients see the Company as essential to fulfill its business objectives in areas such as delivering reliable energy to
households and commercial entities, efficient transportation systems for the masses, and luxury hotel experiences to
customers. In addition, EEI Corporation protects its clients’ reputation and the well-being of workers by maintaining high
standards of safety in construction.

Positioning EEI Corporation to the new opportunities in domestic infrastructure and regional projects require foresight and
preparation. Over the last three years, the Company re-fleeted its aging construction heavy equipment. The corporation maintained
standby skilled workers ready to be deployed to new projects. More importantly, the Company has lined up ample bank credit lines
to support the capital requirements of new projects. Today, EEI Corporation is prepared to take in new projects at several times
the total size of the Company’s present contracts. EEI Corporation’s exceptional credit standing among financial institutions will be
beneficial to capture the upcoming growth in construction activities.
EEI Corporation is committed to invest in the future. Our unworked contract, at P57 billion by the end of 2016, could sustain the
Company in the next three years without additional business. Despite this advantage, our marketing group has been working around
the clock to secure additional contracts. EEI Corporation’s status as one of only six contractors to be upgraded to the highest
rating of AAAA in 2016 places the Company in a good position to win large construction contracts. 2016 also saw EEI’s continued
expansion of capabilities into design as we started the in-house designed MRT Line 7 project, EEI’s largest infrastructure project
to date. Apart from these achievements, we are exploring new methods and technologies to deliver value-added solutions that our
clients need and to improve internal productivity and efficiency. We are training our young people for the needs of the future. We are
building a culture of competence, client orientation and accountability.
As an entity that exists in a community of people, EEI Corporation is committed to enhance the well-being of the environment
and society. Our new fleet of construction equipment is fuel-efficient and our construction practices are environment-friendly.
We have been the contractor of a number of LEED-certified buildings, namely, the Sunlife Financial Philippines Headquarters,
the Third Atrium of the Headquarters Building of the Asian Development Bank, the Aeropark Quad 1 building in Clark, Angeles,
Pampanga, the SM 4Ecom office towers in Pasay City, the Uptown Mall and office towers, the Ore Central, and the Finance Center
in Bonifacio Global City. In Saudi Arabia, we build clean-fuel petroleum processing facilities. EEI Corporation and ARCC are ISO
14001 (Environmental Management System) and OHSAS 18000 (Occupational Health and Safety Management System) certified
by TÜV. Lastly, EEI Corporation, through its subsidiary EEI Power, holds equity investments in a wind power company and a solar
power farm in Aklan and Tarlac, respectively.
Throughout its 86 years of history, EEI Corporation has weathered every market and geopolitical environment. The Company is well
positioned to thrive through uncertainties and change to meet customer needs. We are excited about the opportunities in 2017 and
beyond. We remain committed to the values of integrity and excellence inculcated by our late Chairman, Ambassador Alfonso T.
Yuchengco.
Together, we are Building a Better Future ahead.

HELEN Y. DEE
Vice Chairperson
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ROBERTO JOSE L. CASTILLO
President & Chief Executive Officer
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS
PHILIPPINE ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Philippine economy showed rather robust growth in 2016.
Gross Domestic Product (GDP) grew by 6.8% in 2016, up
from 5.8% in 2015 and the highest in the last three years.

EEI Corporation’s consolidated revenue in 2016 was
P13.59 billion. Domestic construction activities focused on
infrastructure projects, whose progress are characteristically
slower than electro-mechanical or building projects. In
particular, the Skyway project faced challenges with right of
way issues on public utility lines, while the MRT Line 7 project
received inquiries from two government institutions that
delayed its construction start. Meanwhile, the construction of
the Panglao airport was stalled by mandated changes on the
design and materials after the project’s commencement. EEI
Corporation has been in discussion with the proponents of the
Panglao airport development and the main contractor to move
the project forward. All unworked contracts by the end of 2016
have been carried over to 2017.

The construction sub-sector was a large contributor to the
growth of the industry sector. For the period in review, private
construction grew by 9.5% while public construction surged by
29.4%, both better compared to the previous period. Overall,
construction grew by 13.7% in 2016 from 8.7% growth in
2015.

SAUDI ARABIA ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE
The Kingdom of Saudi Arabia’s (KSA) estimated GDP was at
1.2% in 2016, a considerable decline compared to the 3.5%
and 3.6% estimated growths in 2015 and 2014 respectively.
The KSA’s economy continues to be dominated by its
petroleum sector which is heavily controlled by its government.
Since the decline in oil prices that began in the middle of 2014,
public spending has slowed down, significantly affecting the
engineering and construction sectors.
Early in 2016, the government revealed Vision 2030, a long
term plan for economic and social reform. In the middle of
the year, it released the National Transformation Programme,
its plans to achieve its medium term goals. Both plans
emphasized increasing the involvement of the private sector,
especially from small and medium-sized enterprises in nonpetroleum industries.

8
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Services and merchandise sales revenue were lower than those
in 2015 by 2% and 6%, respectively, since these services, under
EEI’s subsidiary, partly support EEI’s construction business.
On the other hand, sales of real estate, through EEI Realty
subsidiary, increased in 2016 due to greater demand for real
estate.
EEI Corporation recorded a provision amounting to P1.4
billion as its share in the net loss of Al Rushaid Construction
Company Ltd. (ARCC), EEI’s 49%-owned joint venture in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. This amount represents the probable
loss arising from delays in a Naptha and Aromatic subcontract
project and possible non-repayment of ARCC’s claims from the
general contractor. The EPC’s inability to deliver materials and
equipment, and the late completion of civil works by its other

FINANCIAL POSITION
subcontractors kept ARCC from
performing its job on time. In early
2016, ARCC entered into a settlement
agreement with the general contractor as
part of its effort to recover unexpected
higher expenses. However, ARCC
subsequently filed a notice of dispute with
the general contractor due to the general
contractor’s behavior that both hindered
ARCC’s compliance with the settlement
agreement and escalated ARCC’s total
cost further. Petro Rabigh, the project’s
owner, supported ARCC’s claims against
the main contractor. ARCC is negotiating
with the key stakeholders to settle the
dispute and to receive compensation for
higher costs incurred with the project.
The company’s direct costs of P12.96 billion
was 23% lower than that in 2015, because
of the completion of major projects in
2015 and the slow progress of the major
infrastructure projects in 2016 as these
were impeded by the issues beyond EEI’s
control.
For the year ending December 31, 2016,
EEI registered a consolidated net loss of
P847.70 million, compared to the P202.73
million consolidated net income in 2015.

At the end of 2016, EEI’s total assets
were at P20.20 billion, 10% lower than
the 2015 yearend level of P22.47 billion.
This drop was mainly brought about
by the 30% decline in the value of the
Company’s work-in-progress, represented
by the costs and estimated earnings
in excess of billings on uncompleted
contracts, and the Company’s share in the
net loss of ARCC.
EEI’s total liabilities stood at P14.36
billion, 8% lower than the previous year.
Significant contributors to this were the
settlement of maturing bank loans and
payables, and the recoupment of down
payments from the completion of several
projects during the year.
EEI’s total equity of P5.84 billion in 2016
was 14% lower than in 2015, mostly from
the 20% drop in retained earnings brought
about by the net loss incurred during the
year, and the dividend declared and paid
in the early part of the year amounting to
P207.26 million.
The Company’s book value per share,
which was at P6.54 at the end of 2015,
went down to P5.63 as at the end of 2016.

EEI CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

1

We provide products and services that give our
customers the best value and compelling experience

19

OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS

COMPLETED
PROJECTS
2

Building projects which were completed during the
year were the Wind Residences Towers 4 and 5 of
SM Development Corporation in Tagaytay City; the
Grand Hyatt Center of Bonifacio Landmark Realty
and Development Corporation in Bonifacio Global
City, Taguig; the Admiral Bay Suites for Admiral Realty
Company, Inc. in Malate, Manila; and, Megaworld’s
Uptown Parade, Uptown Mall and BPO Offices, and
Uptown Place Towers 3 & 4, in Bonifacio Global City.

For infrastructure projects, the Company completed the
expansion of the Bocaue Toll Plaza Barrier for Manila North
Tollways Corporation which it acquired in the same year.
The Electromechanical projects that were completed during
the period were the Condensed Milk Plant and Milk Powdered
Plant and the Flood Control Improvement of Alaska Milk
Corporation in San Pedro, Laguna; the San Gabriel 450 MW
Combined Cycle Power Plant for Siemens, Inc. in Batangas
City, and the MARIS Optimisation Project of Century Drilling
and Energy Services (NZ) Ltd.
1

Bocaue Toll Plaza, Bulacan

2

Port Facilities Project in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Overseas, ARCC completed the Sadara Port Facilities
for Sadara Chemical Company; the Affiliate Wide EO
Reactors Replacement for SABIC under Dragados; the
SPOF Phase 1 Procurement and Construction for Rabigh
Arabian Water and Electricity Company under JGC Gulf
International Co., Ltd.; the PetroRabigh 2 Independent
Water Steam Power Project for Rabigh Arabian Water and
Electricity Company under Mitsubishi Heavy Industries;
the Marjan and Zuluf TP9 Platforms for Saudi Aramco
under STAR; the Rabigh Independent Power Plant 2 for
PetroRabigh under Samsung C&T; and the Retrofit and
Upgrade Construction Works at the Saudi Aramco Ras
Tanura Refinery. In addition, ARCC provided manpower
for several support services and re-tubing work for other
clients in the Kingdom.

Grand Hyatt Center, BGC Taguig
10
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1

AWARDED
PROJECTS

In 2016, EEI won the contracts for the design and construction of the MRT Line 7 Civil Works Package and for the
Interfacing and Integration of Civil Works with the Systems Contractor based on High Level Interfaces Delineation
for Universal LRT Corporation; the expansion of the Bocaue, Balintawak, Meycauayan, and Mindanao Toll Plaza
Barriers for Manila North Tollways Corporation; the improvement of the power distribution system for Petron
Corporation in Limay, Bataan; the bored-piling works in preparation for the construction of the Malayan Colleges
Mindanao in Davao; the Insulation works for the Therma Visayas Energy Project for Galing Power and Energy
Construction Co., Ltd. in Toledo, Cebu; the construction of Coast Residences for SMDC in Pasay City; and, the
construction of the SM 4eCom Center in Pasay City for SM Prime Holdings, Inc.
In the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, ARCC won the SAFCO IV Reliability Improvement Project under e-TEC Arabia
Limited Co.; the erection of Saudi Kayan’s Furnace No. 10 under CTCI; the Ras Tanura Piping Takeover under
Saudi Aramco; the Saudi Kayan EO/EG DBN Project under Wison; and, pipe spool fabrication for Saipem Taqa Al
Rushaid Fabricators Co. Ltd.

1

Therma Visayas Energy Project, Cebu

2

Coast Residences, Pasay City, Metro Manila

3

Power Plant refurbishment project
in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

2
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ON-GOING
PROJECTS

The building projects that the Company was still
working on as 2016 ended were four projects for
Megaworld Corporation namely, the One Eastwood Avenue Tower
1 and Tower 2 in Eastwood City, Quezon City, the Noble Place
in Binondo, Manila, and the Bayshore 6 Cluster in Pasay City;
three projects for SM Development Corporation, namely the
Green Residences in Manila City, Air Residences in Makati City,
and Fame Residences 1 in Mandaluyong City; Beacon Tower 3 of
New Pacific Resources Management, Inc. in Makati City; Monte
de Tesoro’s Ore Central in Bonifacio Global City in Taguig; the
Corporate Center and Skysuites of Double Dragon Properties
Corp. in Quezon City; the Filinvest Festival Supermall Expansion
of Filinvest Land, Inc. in Alabang, Muntinlupa City; Finance
Centre of Daiichi Properties, Inc. in Bonifacio Global City,Taguig;
the GGLC Aeropark Quad 1 (Phase 1) of Global Gateway
Development Corporation in Clark, Angeles, Pampanga; and, the
ETY Building of Enrique T. Yuchengco, Inc. in Binondo, Manila.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

1

Infrastructure projects in
progress were the Runway
Extension of Caticlan Airport of
Transaire Development Holdings
Corporation in Malay, Aklan; the
Communication, Navigation and
Surveillance/Air Traffic Management
Systems Development of the
Department of Transportation and
Communication under Sumitomo
Corporation; Sections 3 & 4
of the Skyway Stage 3 of San
Miguel Corporation/Citra Central
Expressway Partnership; and the
New Bohol (Panglao) Airport of the
Chiyoda-Mitsubishi Corporation
joint venture in Bohol.
Electromechanical projects that were still in-progress
were the 3x135 MW Coal-fired Power Plant for FDC
Utilities in the Phividec Industrial Estate in Misamis
Oriental; the Therma Visayas Energy Project for
Galing Power and Energy Construction Co., Ltd.
in Cebu; and, the Pagbilao Power Plant Unit 3Mechanical Package 1 for Daelim Philippines, Inc. in
Pagbilao, Quezon Province.

2

ARCC continues to work on the Jazan Refinery
and Terminal of Saudi Aramco under Daewoo; the
Safaniyah Works for Saudi Aramco; the Yanpet U10
Convection Upgrade Works for Yanpet Saudi-Yanbu
Petrochemical Company under e-TEC Arabia Limited
Co.; and, the Mechanical Works for the Naphtha
and Aromatic Package of the Rabigh II Refining
and Petrochemical project of the Saudi Aramco
and Sumitomo Chemical Co. joint venture under
Snamprogetti Saudi Arabia, Ltd. In addition, ARCC
still services the maintenance contract of the Saudi
Aramco Total Refining and Petrochemical Company’s
Refinery in a joint venture with Sankyu of Japan.

1

Power Plant project in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

2

ETY Building Project, Binondo, Manila

Air Residences Project, Makati
14
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS
1

2

3

1

The Finance Centre, BGC, Taguig

2

Pagbilao Power Plant, Quezon Province

3

Therma Visayas Energy project, Cebu

ORE CENTRAL in Bonifacio Global City, Taguig
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1

Metro Manila Skyway Stage 3, Quezon City

2

Caticlan Airport, Malay, Aklan

3

3x135 MW Coal-fired Power Plant, Misamis Oriental

4

Green Residences, Manila
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES
EQUIPMENT ENGINEERS, INC.
Equipment Engineers Inc.’s (EE) traditional trading business posted gross revenues amounting to P295 million, 38%
lower than 2015, stalled by implementation delays in projects of its clients. While the total revenues declined yearon-year, the non-construction related revenues pertaining to petroleum products increased by 26%.
EE made significant progress in developing new businesses since the creation of its Opportunity Development Group
in 2015, both for construction and non-construction related industries. EE’s portfolio of products catering to non-construction
industries have expanded. EE formed a new joint venture, JP Systems Asia, Inc., in partnership with KYC Machine Industry Co. Ltd.,
and Sansin Sangyo Col Ltd. This new company is into the sale and rental of scaffolds and formworks.
With its Supply Chain Management Team, EE succeeded in piloting its SuperStore business which offers cost savings and procurement
efficiencies leveraging on its sourcing and selling expertise. EE likewise expanded its footprint with representations in Visayas and
Mindanao.
EEI POWER CORPORATION
The continuous operation in 2016 of
EEI Power Corporation’s (EEIPC)
15-Megawatt Peaking Plant in
Tagum City, serving the customers
of Davao del Norte Electric Cooperative, generated
an income of P13.7 million.
The commitment of EEIPC to expand its power
generation portfolio was strengthened with the
commercial operation in February 2016 of the
50-Megawatt Luisita-1 Solar PV Power Plant in
Tarlac, which was accorded eligibility to the Feed-inTariff (FiT). In 2016, EEIPC’s earnings from its 44%
share in this plant reached P73.4 million.
At the same time, EEIPC’s 20% stake in PetroWind
Corporation’s 36-Megawatt Nabas-1 Wind Power
Plant in Aklan, which has been in operation since
June 2015, earned P26.8 million for the year.
Overall, EEIPC posted a net income of P113.9
million in 2016.

20
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EEI CONSTRUCTION AND MARINE, INC.
EEI Construction and Marine, Inc. (EEICMI) continued
to deliver exceptional results in 2016 as it generated gross
revenues of P427 million, 16% higher compared to the
2015 revenues. EEICMI ended the year with a net income of P48.2 million.
The majority of its projects were obtained from its petroleum company clients
which were embarking on plant expansions programs. Other major projects
were obtained from its traditional clients that required the construction of
tanks and the installation of storage and distribution systems in various parts
of the country.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

THE GAIC GROUP
The GAIC Group, composed of Gulf Asia
International Corporation (GAIC) and GAIC
Manpower Services, Inc. (GAMSI), posted a
consolidated net income of P17.04 million in
2016, 11 % lower than the 2015 net income of P19.12 million.
GAIC registered a net loss of P3.37 million in 2016. The
revenues generated from EEI overseas projects decreased by
34% from P15.27 million in 2015 to P10.13 million in 2016,
due to a 31% decline in the number of men deployed. During
the year, there were deployment bans to some major markets
like Libya, Iraq and Syria due to the unstable peace and order
situation in those countries.
Aside from the traditional accounts from Middle East countries as well as from Equatorial Guinea, Papua New Guinea and Malaysia,
orders were also obtained from new accounts from Saudi Arabia, Qatar, UAE, Hong Kong, Fiji and Ascension Island.
GAMSI, on the other hand, registered a net income of P20.47 million in 2016, an 11% improvement compared to its 2015 performance.
While the Yuchengco Group of Companies remains to be a major customer, GAMSI was able to acquire a good number of new janitorial
and building maintenance service contracts. GAMSI also made inroads as it developed its general cleaning services for residential and
commercial establishments.
EEI REALTY CORPORATION
Total revenues for EEI Realty reached
P19.8 million, 146% higher than that
of the previous year. The revenue was
mainly from its existing projects in Royal Parks @
Grosvenor located in Tanza Cavite, and Suburbia
East in Marikina City. Due however to the updates
in taxes related to its Tanza property amounting to
P3.2 million, EEI Realty ended the year with a net
loss of P1.32 million.
During the year, EEI Realty sold for EEI Corporation
several housing and condominium units in Fairways
Tower and Manggahan Village, totaling P34.8
million. EEI Realty likewise continued to render
property management services for EEI Corporation
in leasing out condominium units at Kingswood
Condominium in Makati and Robinsons Place
Residences in Ermita, Manila and in marketing other
condominium units at Fairways Tower, Bonifacio
Global City. Marketing assistance was also provided
to EEI Corporation in selling 131 lots in Golden
Haven Memorial Park, Las Piñas City and in offering
its 39.15 hectare landholding in Bgy. Mataas na
Bayan, Lemery, Batangas to potential buyers looking
for a good-sized industrial property.
EEI CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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OUTLOOK
The Philippines’ economic growth trend of the four quarters of
2016 suggests a momentum that will likely follow through into
2017. Cash remittances, recorded to be high in 2016, is a main
driver of private consumption – which in turn could be one of the
drivers of private construction. From the Company’s perspective,
private construction has remained steady, while acceleration in
public construction activity has been observed in the increase in
its infrastructure projects. Growth in the overall construction
sector appears to be strong, even as the government transitioned
to the new administration. This could be an indication of the
definitive thrust of the government bringing in the “golden age of
infrastructure” and implementing critical infrastructure projects,
said to be a cornerstone of the economic prospects in the country.
The Company sees this as a good growth opportunity since it is
confident in its capabilities of undertaking such work.
In the KSA, the prices of crude oil are seen to continue at low levels
in the short to medium term. The decline in revenues has prompted
the Saudi government to cut spending, as initiatives towards growing
the non-oil sectors and implementing tax reforms continue. Analysts
consider the uncertainties about future oil prices and escalations of
regional tensions to be among those that may have an impact on the
KSA’s economic growth.
In light of the unfavorable developments in its joint venture in
the KSA, coupled with the falling oil prices which could result in a
slowdown of construction activity in the petrochemical industry, the
Company is intensifying its pursuit of large infrastructure, power,
and industrial projects in other industries, not just in the KSA but in
other countries and most especially, in the domestic market.

EEIPC has already been reaping from its 20% stake in
PetroWind Energy, Inc. and its 44% stake in PetroSolar
Corporation. Prospectively, EEIPC will continue to venture
into more power projects with bias towards clean and
sustainable technologies, to include off-grid installations. It
will likewise diversify into providing power-related solutions
and services, including retail supply, O&M and engineering
consultancy.
EEICMI is eyeing major projects in 2017, particularly the
upgrade of Petron’s JOCASP and Navotas depots. It is
also supporting another client’s expansion plan to add 80
company-owned gasoline stations nationwide, which will
require the fabrication of several underground tanks.
The GAIC Group’s prospects look bright. GAIC already has
major leads for the supply of manpower in new industries
and in new areas, which it will aggressively pursue. To expand
its coverage, GAIC intends to tie-up with more foreign
recruitment and placement agencies. GAMSI, on the other
hand, is exploring opportunities to market cleaning products
and will also aggressively market new services that it has
been developing. GAMSI is also working towards expanding
its geographical reach by establishing branch offices in
Central Luzon, Cagayan de Oro, and in the Calabarzon area.

On top of marketing and selling its existing properties, EEI
Realty has started working on its plan to develop the existing
property in Tanza, Cavite. Together with EE’s Opportunity
Development Group, EEI Realty has started looking at various
housing technologies and new building components to develop
and offer quality and affordable housing solutions to the market.
Negotiations are on-going with Robinsons Homes, Inc. to
acquire and construct houses on 167 additional lots in Tanza,
Cavite to fulfill the mandated socialized housing component for
the Suburbia East project in Marikina City. The Royal Parks @
Grosvenor Place project in Tanza, Cavite is expected to register
sales of 142 socialized housing units in 2017. Sales of these units
are expected to make up the bulk of EEI Realty Corporation’s
revenues in 2017.
Studies are currently being conducted to test the viability
of acquiring Company-owned properties, such as EEI
Corporation’s 2.95 hectare light industrial property in Majada,
Calamba, Laguna and developing this into a middle-income
residential subdivision.
With all these on-going initiatives against the opportunity
canvass, the Company remains optimistic of its ability to achieve
sustained growth in the medium term.

At the end of 2016, the Company’s unworked portion of existing
contracts amounted to P57.49 billion including ARCC’s unworked
portion of P11.77 billion. This backlog of projects is healthy, and
overall, EEI expects a robust performance in its domestic operations
driven by buildings, large infrastructure, and heavy industrial projects
in its pipeline. It foresees more projects, especially from high-win
probability prospects currently being pursued. There is also optimism
in the business opportunities outside the Philippines and the KSA,
and the fruition of the development works being undertaken by its
local subsidiaries.
With the new businesses that EE is developing, EE is looking at being
bigger and more diversified, with more revenue sources in the short
to medium term. It is also working towards growing the client base
of the SuperStore to provide more revenue to the group.

22

EEI CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2016

EEI CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2016

23

VISION & MISSION

MISSION:

BUILD, LEAD,AND SERVE RESPONSIBLY

The last decade of EEI Corporation was one of unprecedented growth as
the Company created inroads in international markets, and built a growing
reputation for excellence in quality and in its safety practices.
In 2016, in response to evolving needs of the public, of its clients, of its
employees, of the Philippines, and of the rest of the world, EEI Corporation
refined its directions and re-crafted its Vision and Mission Statements. These
became the guides on which its strategies for 2017 and beyond were formulated.
VISION:

BUILDER OF A BETTER FUTURE

EEI will create not just more, but meaningful jobs, and cultivate a culture of highly motivated and productive workers.

We are the leading Construction Company in the Philippines, with international operations, committed to the
highest level of quality, safety and environment protection, providing innovative solutions and prompt delivery.
We provide products and services that give our customers the best value and compelling experience.
Our people and our partners are our most valued assets.
We uplift the quality of life in the communities we serve.

CORE VALUES:
INTEGRITY

Our consistent pursuit of ethics and morality in thoughts, words, and
actions.

PASSION FOR EXCELLENCE

Our insatiable commitment to improve and innovate.

By being a partner in construction, EEI will participate in creating vibrant economies.

FAIRNESS TO STAKEHOLDERS

In the course of its work, EEI will minimize the use of resources, generate less waste, take better care of its environment, and
influence others to do the same.

SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

EEI will harness its creativity and will innovate, make use of new technology, develop new methodologies, and continuously find
better ways to do things.

Our conviction that our stakeholders should get what is due to them.

Our firm belief in respect of human lives, property, and the
environment; and in freedom from harm.

EEI will be an agent of positive and meaningful change as it promotes good corporate governance, better health in
communities, and a better quality of life, not just for its people but for the communities it serves.
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BUILDER OF A BETTER FUTURE
QUALITY ASSURANCE FOR CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

Special Citation received from the Department of Trade & Industry for
Services Innovation Excellence in the field of Construction Services,
during the 2016 National Export Congress last December 7, 2016

2016 was a milestone for EEI’s Quality Management System (QMS), marking the twentieth year of the Company’s unwavering
commitment to quality and customer satisfaction. In keeping with this commitment, EEI’s Quality Assurance is moving beyond
compliance measurement and will be focusing on actively supporting the Company’s strategies for business growth and productivity
improvement. Emphases will be in client satisfaction and retention, through the streamlining of construction and support activities;
early identification and resolution of quality and process issues, through the conduct of risk-based project checks and reviews; and
the continuing establishment of a LEAN culture, by working with operations to establish, implement, and monitor best lean practices
and initiatives throughout the Company.
To effect this shift, the Quality Assurance group will prioritize process efficiency and effectiveness to attain the desired business
growth, maximize customer satisfaction, and optimize resource utilization, with ISO 9001 certification as a by-product of the
Company’s corporate strategies rather than as a primary objective.

SAFETY, HEALTH,
ENVIRONMENT & SECURITY

We are the leading Construction Company in the Philippines,
with International Operations, committed to the highest level of quality, safety,
and environment protection, providing innovative solutions and prompt delivery.
THE ENVIRONMENT IN MIND
EEI has been making a conscious effort to ensure the environmental soundness of its products and the manner of delivery of its
services. Through its Going Green Program, and the practices it has learned in its participation in LEED (Leadership in Energy
and Environment Design) projects and its membership in BERDE (Philippine Green Building Council), the Company implements
environment-friendly construction methodologies even if the projects implementing these are not going for certification. The
Company is also mindful of how it disposes of its wastes, especially those that require special consideration and treatment like used
oil, used batteries, and those with toxic chemicals.
When natural resources are unavoidably damaged in the process of construction, the Company conducts site rehabilitation activities
to restore vegetation that may have been lost and to avoid further damage. EEI has taken on the accountability for the more
than one thousand trees that will have to be cut and earth balled throughout the length of the construction of the MRT 7 project.
Because each tree cut will have to be replaced with 50 seedlings, EEI will be providing for more than 60 thousand seedlings and will
have to ensure the survival of transplanted trees.
EEI’s thrusts towards supporting a more sustainable environment are why EEIPC focuses on clean technologies. EEIPC has stake in
PetroWind Energy, Inc. and in PetroSolar Corporation.

26

EEI CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Surveillance audits were conducted between July 22
to August 5, 2016 in several project sites, including
EEI Headquarters, to validate whether the Safety,
Health, and Environmental Management Systems
were established in the daily operations. This
resulted in the issuance of Maintenance Certificates
on OHSAS 18001:2007 and ISO 14001:2004 to
the Company. ARCC was also re-certified by TÜV
Nord on the standards of OHSAS 18001:2007 and
ISO 14001:2004.
In 2016, the EEI Safety, Health, Environment, and
Security Group conducted various programs to
enhance and promote safety awareness among all its
employees. These programs included fire prevention
seminars, emergency preparedness and response
drills, first aid and basic life support seminars, road
safety seminars, lifting and rigging safety training,
and several other training programs related to safety
and health.
At the end of 2016, EEI domestic projects and
its fixed establishments logged more than 90
million man-hours without lost-time injury. The
following are 25 of the Company’s projects and fixed
establishments that have clocked more than one
million safe man-hours:

Wind Residences
Green Residences
Steel Fabrication Shop
Admiral Baysuites
Festival Supermall
One Eastwood Avenue Tower I
Beacon Tower Phase 3
Therma Visayas Energy
Aeropark Quad1 Phase 1
CNS-ATM Package 1
San Gabriel Power Plant
FDC 3x135 Coal-Fired Power Plant
Uptown Towers 3 & 4
Alaska Plant Rehabilitation
AMG Training Center
Ore Central
Pagbilao 420MW Power Plant
The Finance Centre
The Sky Suites
Metro Manila Skyway Stage 3
ESG Majada Yard
Air Residences
New Bohol Airport
Noble Place
Bayshore Residential Resort

16,531,148
8,937,081
7,383,040
6,323,369
4,522,010
4,128,566
3,481,074
3,032,460
2,990,596
2,815,703
2,765,108
2,724,290
2,606,227
2,595,723
2,490,084
2,474,926
2,218,076
2,159,323
2,031,616
1,943,568
1,643,315
1,526,127
1,357,695
1,181,505
1,078,961
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For the year, ARCC logged 29,973,479 safe man-hours. The Petro Rabigh 2
Independent Water Steam Power Project under Mitsubishi Heavy Industries
was completed in May, 2016 with 25.4 million man-hours without lost time
injury; and the Rabigh Independent Power Plant 2 under Samsung C&T was
completed in September, 2016 with 6.2 million manhours without lost time
injury.
EEI continues to mentor some of its subcontractors and suppliers in practicing
Safety and Health Standards through its Kapatiran Program, its long-term,
cooperative project with the Department of Labor and Employment. In May of
2016, a safety forum, conducted in partnership with the Association of Safety
Practitioners of the Philippines, Inc. (ASPPI), was conducted at the AMG
Training Center in Bulacan.
Through a Memorandum of Understanding signed last December 29, 2016, EEI
engaged with ASPPI as an institutional partner. EEI was represented by Vice
President for Human Resources Management, Reynaldo J. Dizon, while ASPPI
was represented its National President, Engr. Nomer A. Reynaldo.

BUILDER OF A BETTER FUTURE

EQUIPMENT SERVICES
EEI’S Equipment Services Group continued with its modernization
program and acquired brand new equipment to support the increase
in capacity, ensure availability, and enhance reliability as it serves the
Company’s production requirements.
Added to its fleet in 2016 were two Liebherr all terrain cranes with 200
tons capacity, a few batching plants, water chillers, a crushing plant, and
other supplemental earthmoving and transport equipment.
Improvements were also done on its fixed establishment, processes,
and systems. As part of its commitment to responsible environmental
protection and management, a sewage treatment plant with advanced
oxidation process with a capacity of 50-300 cubic meters of waste water
per day was installed at ESG Majada Yard in the first quarter of 2016.
In the middle of the year, the Equipment Services Group launched its
web-based Equipment Management System (EMS) at its Yard in Majada,
Laguna. This provides a more robust information system for equipment,
thus allowing better monitoring and equipment management, and faster
response times.
The Group also enhanced the competencies of its personnel. All Heavy
Equipment Operators and Drivers underwent competency trade tests
and acquired National Certification by TESDA and in compliance with a
Department Order of the Department of Labor and Employment.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
The Supply Chain Management Group (SCM) continued to provide
benefits to EEI through the continued strategy of consolidating common
materials and services across all its projects in order to maximize its
negotiating leverage with its various vendors. Site Spend remained
under control as it was kept at only 4% of the Total Annual Spend,
thereby ensuring that the Company gets only the best deals in its various
procurement activities.
In the area of health, through a program launched several years ago by EEI’s Medical Director, Dr. Earl Edward Dimamay, the
Company has successfully shifted healthcare management in EEI to being more proactive rather than merely responding to
employees’ needs. The program has led to a higher level of awareness among employees regarding health which has, in turn, resulted
in a higher level of effectiveness in the delivery of clinical and medical services.
Dr. Dimamay spearheaded the upgrading of the Company’s medical facilities and services, and the improvement of systems and
processes throughout the Company. This included offering alternative job opportunities or courses of action to applicants who fail to
pass medical screening. For this, Dr. Dimamay received the YGC Values Exemplar Award for Professional Discipline, an award given
by the Yuchengco Group of Companies to employees who best personify the YGC core values.
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The SCM Superstore gained ground in the middle of the year when it
landed its first major client in procurement consultancy. The results of
the consultancy gave fruit to the client requesting the Superstore team to
submit a proposal for the second phase of the engagement. The business
model was further validated when it was able to provide another client with
assistance in achieving substantial savings during the performance of its
contract.
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STEWARDSHIP AND
COMMUNITY BUILDING

2

1

We uplift the quality of life in the communities we serve.
The basic principle of stewardship is the recognition that we do not own those which is put under our care. Good
stewardship calls for being responsible and accountable for the results of our actions. In EEI, we build, lead, and
work towards ensuring that we leave the communities we work in in a better state than when we arrived.

3

CLEAN AND GREEN COMMUNITIES
Safety and Environmental Protection is one
of EEI’s Core Values. It is the Company’s firm
belief in the respect of human lives, property,
and the environment; and in freedom from
harm.
Last April 22, 2016, the Project Management
Team involved in the construction of the
Boracay Airport in Caticlan participated
in the Clean and Green Programs of the
Municipalities by joining in the the cleanup
drives at Barangay Caticlan in Malay, Aklan and
Barangay Union in Nabas, Aklan, and donating
trash bins to the Union Elementary School.
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Last April 23, 2016, EEI Homebase employees and employees from the
Equipment Services Group Majada Yard participated in the “Linis Ilog
Program”, which was held in Antipolo. The activity involved cleaning five
estero stations located in different barangays of Antipolo. After this, the
volunteers visited the Hinulugang Taktak Falls which is where the water from
the esteros flow.

1

EEI Donated trash bins at
Union Elementary School, Aklan

2

Linis Ilog Program, Antipolo

3

Tree Planting Activity, San Mateo Rizal

EEI employees also took part in a tree planting activity held in Barangay
Pintung Bukawe, San Mateo, Rizal last October 15, 2016. The activity was
in collaboration with Laguna Lake Development Authority headed by Nereus
Acosta, and the San Mateo Local Government Unit headed by Mayor
Cristina Diaz. The group planted 2,000 seedlings of forest trees such as Ear
Pods, Narra, and Fire Trees and fruit-bearing trees such as Guyabano and
Langka for the community.
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STEWARDSHIP AND COMMUNITY BUILDING
1

COMMUNITY ASSISTANCE
The Company does not hesitate in providing assistance
when it can, and in the process, foster harmonious relations
with the members of the communities it works in.
Last May 2, 2016, the Project Management Team of the
Boracay Airport project in Aklan donated 5 steel filing
cabinets and 7 office tables to the Philippine National Police
for their extension office in Nabas.
Through its Human Resources Team and its Infrastructure
Group, the Company contributed to the celebration of the
16th Anniversary of the Cityhood of San Jose Del Monte,
Bulacan by providing 1,000 T-shirts for the locals during
their ALAY LAKAD last September 9, 2016.

The ALAY LAKAD, part of the weeklong Tanglawan
Festival, was participated by individuals from the different
barangay sectors. Members of EEI, including its Project
Manager and its Field Administration Group Supervisor also
took part in the event.
When the circumstances call for it, EEI provides resources
to assist the community in extraordinary situations. Last
June 22, 2016, a trailer truck traveling along the National
Highway at Barangay Habana, Nabas, Aklan lost control
and figured in an accident that resulted in the blockage
of the highway. EEI dispatched a team, along with lifting
equipment, to assist in getting the truck out and normalizing
the flow of traffic.
1

2
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1

Coastal Cleanup Drive, Nabas, Aklan

2

Zero Solid Waste Month Program, Bauan, Batangas
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As a result of EEI’s Going Green Program, launched in
2011, all operating units in EEI, at homebase, and all its
projects, have adopted waste reduction activities in its
operations. The various construction projects, through
its War-on-Waste Program, have their own initiatives on
resource maximization and waste reduction which include
projects like paperless reporting, reuse and recycling of
materials, minimization of concrete and rebar waste, use
of LED and other energy-efficient appliances, rain water
collection, reduction of fuel consumption, and many other
projects which have saved the Company millions of pesos
since the program was launched.
Last January 2016, the Steel Fabrication Shop in Bauan,
Batangas, after supporting the DENR-EMB’s Zero Solid
Waste Month program by conducting a general clean-up
of the plant facility’s surroundings, decided to continue
with the activities. It is now regular for all employees of
the Shop to do a major clean-up throughout the premises
every Saturday morning.

2

1

Donation of office equipment
to PNP, Nabas, Aklan

2

EEI responding to rescue/ road
clearing operation, Nabas, Aklan
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MEDICAL MISSION AND
OUTREACH PROGRAM
On its 85th Anniversary year, EEI employees thought
it would be meaningful to visit the elderly residents at
Anawim Lay Missions Foundations, Inc.
Last February 27, 2016, a medical mission was conducted
which benefited 54 patients who had chronic and
debilitating diseases. Aside from providing medical care
and donating medical supplies solicited from benefactors,
the volunteers also provided ‘fun activities’ to bring cheer
and merriment to all who were there.

LIVELIHOOD & EDUCATION
A one-day training seminar on the construction of Solar Night Lights
was conducted last March 17, 2016 by the National Housing Authority
(NHA), in coordination with TESDA and with the assistance of EEI,
at Southville 9, in Baras, Rizal. A total of 29 participants, residents of
the said place, attended and completed the training.

In December 2016, managers and staff of the Supply
Chain Management Group conducted an outreach for
the children of an isolated riverside community. Aside
from providing lunch and donations of toys, clothes,
toiletries, school supplies, and other items, the group had
a program with games, songs, and dance numbers.

Southville 9 is a housing project of NHA with over 3,000 registered
families. The place did not have power and electricity, which is why
the NHA launched this ‘first-of-its-kind’ solar light training program
here. Aside from providing some lighting to their homes, it was hoped
that learning the technology would also provide the participants with
knowledge on how to assemble, troubleshoot, maintain the devices,
and even make it a form of livelihood. EEI Facilities Engineer Osmar
Ruiz, our Facilities Electrical Foreman Rosby Eslera, attended and
assisted in the facilitation of this training program.
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FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS
CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Conduct of Business and Ethics

EEI’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is the
governing policy by which the Company engages in
its businesses. It is the same code that guides all the
members of the Yuchengco Group of Companies.
The code provides direction to all the Company’s
employees and members of the Board in the proper
conduct of affairs of the Company towards providing
fairness in all transactions.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
EEI Corporation is committed to practicing the highest level of corporate governance across all its business
functions throughout the organization. The Company desires to uphold the value of integrity and promote
a culture of transparency in the conduct of its businesses. The trust and confidence of its stakeholders is of
prime importance.
In order to protect shareholder and customer interests, EEI ensures that all shareholders are treated equally.
The Company’s Corporate Governance Manual that states the rights of its shareholders is published in its
website at
https://www.eei.com.ph/pdf/corporate-governance/cg_manual_2014.pdf
EEI makes deliberate efforts to ensure that all its shareholders are equally apprised of developments in
its operations. Material information is timely reported to the public through the Company’s website to
provide shareholders equal access to pertinent information that may affect the Corporation.
The Company also publishes in its website the latest investors’ briefings, for the convenience of investors
and its shareholders.
EEI Corporation has been, and continues to be one of the best rated companies in the construction
segment of publicly listed companies in the ASEAN Corporate Governance Scorecard peer-review.
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The Company’s Policy on Conflict of Interest further
requires all personnel to be entirely free from the
influence of conflicting interests when representing
the Company in any business dealings, or when making
recommendations to the Company’s Management.
The code provides rules which prohibit employees or
members of their immediate families from accepting
gifts, forms of entertainment, or personal benefits or
privileges in the performance of their employment
duties. However, this does not preclude receiving
those which are customary and proper in the
circumstances, provided that no obligation could be, or
perceived to be, expected in connection with the act.
The Code also upholds fairness as it states that all
personnel should deal objectively with the Company’s
customers, suppliers, competitors and their employees;
that Company personnel should not take advantage
of anyone through unfair dealing practice; and that
all Company personnel and Members of the Board
are required to strictly maintain the confidentiality of
information that is entrusted to them by the Company
and its customers.
All the governing rules have been included in the
Company’s website to underscore the Company’s
efforts in transparency. Public disclosures are also
included in the website to ensure that all stakeholders
are updated of developments. These are means by
which the Company adheres to transparency and
fairness in accordance with the highest precepts of
Corporate Governance.

Fraud Policy

The Fraud Policy applies to
any irregularity or suspected
irregularity, involving directors,
officers, and employees,
shareholders, consultants, vendors,
contractors, customers, or any
party involved in a business
relationship with the Company or its subsidiaries. A probe
will be conducted regardless of the suspected wrongdoer’s
position, length of service, or relationship to the Company.
The drive for performance will not be allowed to override
probity and accountability.

Whistle Blowing Policy

EEI Corporation allows
whistleblowing as a means
for employees to report
suspected misconduct, illegal
acts, or failure to act within the
Company. Whistleblowing is
viewed as a positive act that can
make a valuable contribution
to the Company’s long-term
success.
The policy aims to encourage participation from
stakeholders who have knowledge of anomalies or suspected
irregularities about any aspect of the Company’s operations
to come forward and voice those concerns.
The Company is committed to achieving the highest
possible standards of service and the highest possible ethical
standards in public life and in all of its practices.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board of Directors of EEI is responsible for overseeing the activities of the Company and is accountable to the shareholders for the
organization’s strategy and performance. It is responsible for setting the tone at the top of the organization, influencing corporate culture,
setting corporate strategy, and overseeing the governance, risk, and control programs of the Executive Management. To assist the Board
in fulfilling its oversight responsibility, the Audit Committee provides independent assurance related to the appropriateness and adequacy
of the planning, execution and reporting of the activities, and governance, risk and control programs of the organization.
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is composed of five appointed
members of the Board and is chaired by one of the
independent directors. It holds regular meetings with the
Head of Internal Audit and the External Auditor, with the
presence of Management, at least once every quarter. It
also meets privately with the External Auditor and the
Internal Audit Head separately at least once a year. Heads of
Operating Units and Support Groups are also invited to its
regular meetings when necessary.
The specific roles and responsibilities of the Audit Committee
are defined in the Audit Committee Charter and in the
Company’s Corporate Governance Manual.
Corporate Internal Audit Group
The Corporate Internal Audit Group provides independent,
objective assurance and consulting services designed to add
value and help improve the organization’s governance, risk,
and control processes. It reports functionally to the Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors, and administratively to
the President and CEO of the Company.
The roles and responsibilities of the Corporate Internal
Audit Group are defined in its Internal Audit Charter, in
the Company’s Corporate Governance Manual, and in the
Management Control Policy.
The Corporate Internal Audit Group adopts a risk-based audit
approach, based on the COSO Framework, in developing its
annual work plan and in the execution of its audit programs.
It regularly collaborates with the Risk Management Unit for
guidance regarding the Company’s identified risk universe
and risk management plans as well as the defined risk appetite
and tolerance of both the Management and the Board. It
also coordinates with the Quality Assurance, and the Safety,
Health, Environment & Security Groups regarding their work
scope and methodologies to avoid work duplication.
The Corporate Internal Audit Group regularly reports the
results of its audit activities and its evaluation of the internal
control system to the Audit Committee. The results of the
audit client’s feedback on the quality of the audit services
performed are also reported to the Audit Committee.
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To help raise awareness of the importance of good governance
throughout the organization, the Corporate Internal Audit
Group regularly conducts orientations at the EEI Head Office,
project sites, and at sites of the Company’s other business
units via HR’s Orientation Programs or when doing audit
engagements.
The Corporate Internal Audit Group is composed of certified
public accountants, certified internal control auditors,
a certified internal auditor, a certified risk management
assurance practitioner, a licensed civil engineer, and an
industrial engineer. In 2016, Reyes Tacandong & Co. was
engaged to conduct the review of selected IT system
applications of the Company.
To continuously equip and upgrade the competencies and skills
of the members of the group, the Company sends its internal
auditors to relevant training and development programs.
Internal sessions and Company-sponsored memberships in
professional industry organizations allow on-going learning for
the auditors as they learn of best practices and are exposed to
the latest developments in the industry.
External Auditor
The appointed external auditor of EEI and its subsidiaries
for the fiscal years 2016 and 2015 is Sycip Gorres Velayo &
Co. (SGV & Co.). It provides reasonable assurance to all the
Stakeholders of the Company that the financial statements
and disclosures are free from material misstatements. It is
directly responsible to the Audit Committee in ensuring the
integrity of the Company’s financial statements and reporting
process.
The Audit Committee evaluates and endorses to the Board
for approval, upon the recommendation of Management, the
appointment and the service fees of the External Auditor.
The shareholders ratify and approve its appointment upon the
recommendation of the Board.
For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the
aggregate fees approved in connection with the audit and
audit-related services that SGV & Co. rendered amounted to
P8.5 million and P7.4 million respectively, inclusive of VAT.

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT

Enterprise Risk Management relates to how the Company manages risk in creating, preserving, and realizing value. It is about being aware
and prepared for events that could favorably or adversely influence the achievement of the Company’s objectives.
Effective risk management calls for an unconstrained flow of information throughout the organization to allow the effective gathering,
unifying, and analysis of data that will, in turn, provide insights on the most probable outcomes of events and lead to more proactive
management.
EEI’s Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Program which has been in place since 2009, provides a structured approach to implementing
risk management on an enterprise-wide basis and follows the following international standards, as applicable:
• Enterprise Risk Management – Integrated Framework, Developed by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organization (COSO) of the Treadway Commission, September 2004;
• ISO 31000:2009 Risk Management- Principles and Guidelines, and
• IEC 62198 Managing Risks in Projects- Application Guidelines
The Board, through its Risk Oversight Committee, has overall responsibility for the enterprise risk management and the review of the
Company’s risk profile. The ERM Program is executed through the Board Risk Oversight Committee and the Risk Management Council.
Board Risk Oversight Committee
The Board Risk Oversight Committee is composed of four
members of the Board and is chaired by an independent
director. It formulates strategy and policy based on risk
appetite, risk attitudes and risk exposures; receives reports
from, and track risks management activities of, the Risk
Management Council; keeps the risk management context
under review; and, makes reports and recommendations to
the Board.
Risk Management Council
The Risk Management Council is composed of 16 members,
which includes the President and CEO, the Chief Risk
Officer, the heads of various departments, and heads of the
Company’s subsidiaries. The Risk Management Council
meets regularly to discuss the new and emerging risks
brought about by the peculiarities of new projects, changes
in the market place, economic shifts, political upheavals,
disasters, unusual events and probable impending events
which had been identified in the various areas of Company’s
business activities. The Risk Management Council is
responsible for providing timely, relevant and comprehensive
risk information to the Board Risk Oversight Committee.
In 2013, the Risk Management Group introduced the
Company’s Corporate Crisis Management Plan. This
plan is a comprehensive guide to ensure organizational
preparedness, business continuity and profitability amidst
disasters like massive earthquake, pandemics, insurgency,
super typhoons and similar events. The Company is
currently establishing the organization that will manage crisis
situations and preparing all business units for orientation and
regular drills.

In the last quarter of 2015, the Yuchengco Group of Companies
(YGC) established the Business Continuity and Disaster Risk
Management (BCDRM) Council, of which EEI Corporation is a
member.
This Council’s goals are towards the continuous improvement,
maximization of synergy, and the leveraging of the member
companies’ capabilities in identifying, assessing, mitigating and
responding to disasters and other major business disruptions. The
BCDRM Council meets every month. EEI is represented in this
council by the Risk Management, IT and Safety Departments.
In 2016, the Company undertook the following risk management
initiatives:
1. The improvement of the capabilities of the risk management
function from deterministic forecasting of the business future
performance to probabilistic forecasting;
2. The revision and finalization of the draft of the Company’s ERM
Manual;
3. The strategic alignment drafting of the Company’s risk appetite
and risk tolerance;
4. The setting up of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and Key Risk
Indicators (KRIs) to measure and monitor performance of strategic
goals;
5. The enhancement of data collection, data storage, and
other information systems improvements to support the data
requirements;
6. The establishment of the information security blueprint to address
the heightened and emerging risks on cybersecurity and data privacy.
EEI CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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WILFRIDO E.
SANCHEZ
Director
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RENATO C.
VALENCIA
Independent Director

JUAN KEVIN G.
BELMONTE
Director

HELEN Y.
DEE
Vice Chairperson

AMB. ALFONSO
T. YUCHENGCO
Chairman of the Board

ROBERTO JOSE
L. CASTILLO
President & Chief Executive Officer

ROBERTO F.
DE OCAMPO
Independent Director

FILEMON T.
BERBA, JR.
Independent Director

MEDEL T.
NERA
Director
EEI CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2016

41

OFFICERS
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
from left:

EXECUTIVE OFFICE
standing from left: FIDEL I. VISTA

FERDINAND O. SIA

Senior Vice President and Chief Finance Officer

ROBERTO JOSE L. CASTILLO

President & Chief Executive Officer

ANTONIO A. VILLAMOR, JR.

Vice President & Chief Risk Officer

GLENN F. VILLASEÑOR

Senior Vice President, Knowledge Management &
Change Management

LOURDJEAN R. AVILA

Vice President, Internal Audit

NORMAN K. MACAPAGAL

Senior Vice President, Overseas Marketing

ANDRES S. SARMIENTO

Assistant Vice President, MIS

ANTONIO S. PASCUA

Executive Vice President

RODRIGO JESUS V. MANTARING

Assistant Vice President, Corporate Development

OSCAR D. MERCADO

Senior Vice President, Engineering & Marketing

seated from left: ROBERTO JOSE L. CASTILLO
GLENN F. VILLASEÑOR
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Assistant Vice President, Quality Assurance

President & Chief Executive Officer
Senior Vice President, Knowledge Management &
Change Management
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OFFICERS

standing from left:
CHRISTOPHER F. ESGUERRA
Assistant Vice President, Marketing
ERNIE Y. CHUA
Assistant Vice President, Logistics
HOMER C. SANCHEZ
Assistant Vice President,
Equipment Rental
FREDERICK E.R. PADA, III
Assistant Vice President, Subcontract
seated from left:
ERNESTO E. CRISTI, JR.
Assistant Vice President, Quality Control
KENNETH B. SAMSON
Assistant Vice President, Marketing
MAGNEO M. PARAM
Assistant Vice President, Engineering

standing from left:
ISABELO M. ROQUERO
Assistant Vice President,
Electromechanical Group
RODEL M. CRUZ
Assistant Vice President,
Architectural Group
JOSE LUCIO R. MENDOZA
Assistant Vice President,
Buildings Group

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION
AND STEEL FABRICATION
standing from left:

seated from left:
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FERDINAND M. DEL PRADO

Vice President, Sales & Marketing

HIPOLITO P. PUNZALAN

Vice President, Electromechanical Group

JULIAN B. DE DIOS, JR.

Vice President, Project Control & Logistics

ANDRES P. TUMBOKON, III

Vice President, Buildings Group

HANS CHRISTIAN O. LOPEZ

Vice President, Infrastructure Group

ANTONIO S. PASCUA

Executive Vice President

OSCAR D. MERCADO

Senior Vice President, Engineering & Marketing
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SIMON ELMER D. SAN MIGUEL
Assistant Vice President,
Electromechanical Group
seated from left:
RAUL G. J. DELA CRUZ
Assistant Vice President,
Steel Fabrication Division
JESS P. PARADA
Assistant Vice President,
Buildings Group
FERDINAND D. APOLONIO
Assistant Vice President,
Buildings Group

EEI CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2016

45
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OFFICERS

FINANCE

LEGAL
from left:
GEORGE RYAN T. HIPOLITO
Assistant Vice President, Legal

from left:
FERDINAND O. SIA
Senior Vice President and
Chief Finance Officer

MARIETTA R. VELASCO
Vice President, Legal

REBECCA R. TONGSON
Vice President & Controller
VICTOR G. PEREZ
Vice President, Treasury

HUMAN
RESOURCES
MANAGEMENT
from left:
MICHAEL D. ARGUELLES
Assistant Vice President,
Corporate Safety, Health, Environment,
and Security
LUIS H. DADO
Assistant Vice President,
Labor / Employee Relations
DIVINA F. MUNJI
Vice President,
Human Resources Staff Services

SUBSIDIARIES
from left:
ROMULO R. FERNANDEZ
Vice President & General Manager,
EEI Construction and Marine, Inc.
RICARDO C. REYES
Vice President & General Manager,
Gulf Asia International Corporation |
Gaic Manpower Services, Inc.
LARRY J. ARDINA
Assistant Vice President & General Manager,
EEI Realty Corporation

REYNALDO J. DIZON
Vice President,
Human Resources Management
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
CORPORATE OFFICE

12 Manggahan Street, Bagumbayan,
Quezon City 1110, Philippines
Tel. Nos.: (+632) 635-0843 to 49
(+632) 635-0861 to 65
Fax No.: (+632) 635-0861
E-mail: eeicenter@eei.com.ph
Website: http://www.eei.com.ph
Mailing Address
P.O. Box 287 ACPO, Cubao,
Quezon City, Philippines
P.O. Box 7160
Domestic Airport Post Office
Pasay City 3120, Philippines

FABRICATION SHOP

Barangay Sta. Maria, CBW-21
Bauan, Batangas, 4201 Philippines
Tel. Nos.: (+6343) 727-1601 to 03
Fax No.: (+6343) 727-1271
E-mail: rg jdelacruz@eei.com.ph

OVERSEAS JOINT VENTURE

Al Rushaid Construction Co., Ltd.
2nd Floor Tower B, Al-Mousa Blue Tower,
King Faisal Bin Abdulaziz Road,
P.O. Box 31688, Al-Khobar 31952,
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
Tel. Nos.: (+966) 13-801-0000 (trunkline)
Fax No.: (+966) 13-801-0177
Sales Department
Tel No.: (+966) 13-801-0175
Mobile No.: (+966) 50-611-1775
E-mail: rmdeleon@arcc-eei.com

SUBSIDIARIES

EEI Corporation (Guam), Inc.
356-A Hernan Cortez Street,
Hagatña, Guam 96910
Equipment Engineers, Inc.
12 Manggahan Street, Bagumbayan,
Quezon City 1110, Philippines
Tel. Nos.: (+632) 635-2247
Fax No.: (+632) 635-2437
E-mail: eeinc@eei.com.ph
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EEI Power Corporation
12 Manggahan Street, Bagumbayan,
Quezon City 1110, Philippines
Tel. Nos.: (+632) 636-6520
(+632) 635-0851 loc. 4456
Fax No.: (+632) 635-2437
E-mail: eeipower@eei.com.ph
EEI Construction and Marine, Inc.
12 Manggahan Street, Bagumbayan,
Quezon City 1110, Philippines
Tel. Nos. (+632) 636-5366
(+632) 635-0843 loc. 4704
Fax No.: (+632) 635-5352
E-mail: eeimc@eei.com.ph
Fabrication Shop
Lot 5A Maguyam Road,
Barangay Maguyam, Silang, Cavite
Philippines
Tel. Nos. (+6346) 482-0748
(+6346) 482-0722
Gulf Asia International Corporation
GAIC Manpower Services, Inc.
Ground Floor Topy Building,
3 Economia Street, Bagumbayan,
Quezon City 1110, Philippines
Tel. Nos.: (+632) 633-8608
(+632) 638-7972
(+632) 637-9220
(+632) 635-7419
Fax No.: (+632) 638-4946
(+632) 635-4770
E-mail: rcreyes@gaicgrp.com
CEBU Office
G/F JL & Sons Building
No. 92 Landon Junquera Street
Cebu City, Philippines
Tel. No.: (+6332) 253-4190
BACOLOD Office
King’s Hotel
San Sebastian Street
Bacolod, Negros Occidental
Philippines
Tel. No.: (+6334) 436-5269
CAGAYAN DE ORO Office
Tan’s Apt. Door 5
Captain Vicente Roa Street,
Cagayan De Oro City, Philippines
Tel. No.: (+638822) 722-796

DAVAO Office
Door 5, 2nd Floor Goldwin Building,
E. Quirino Street, Davao City,
Philippines
Tel. No.: (+6382) 224-1332
EEI Realty Corporation
12 Manggahan Street, Bagumbayan,
Quezon City 1110, Philippines
Tel. Nos.: (+632) 634-7192
(+632) 635-0843 loc. 263
Fax No.: (+632) 635-0861 Attn: EEI Realty
E-mail: eeirealty@eei.com.ph

2016 BANKS AND FINANCIAL
SERVICES PROVIDERS

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited
BDO Unibank, Inc.
Bank of China
Bank of Commerce
Bank of the Philippine Islands
BPI Family Savings Bank
Development Bank of the Philippines
EastWest Banking Corporation
First Hawaiian Bank
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Land Bank of the Philippines
Malayan Insurance Co., Inc.
Maybank Philippines, Inc.
Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company
Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd.
Multinational Investment Bancorporation
Philippine National Bank
Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation
RCBC Savings Bank
Robinson Bank
Sun Life Grepa Financial, Inc.
Unionbank of the Philippines
United Coconut Planters Bank

FINANCIAL SECTION

EEI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
50 Statement of Management’s Responsibility
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57 Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015
Years Ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014

STOCK TRANSFER AGENT
Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation
AUDITORS
Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co.
Certified Public Accountants
LEGAL COUNSELS
Poblador Bautista & Reyes
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EEI CORPORATION
ISO 9001 :2008 CERTIFIED

Corporate Ofﬁce & Construction Division:
12 Manggahan St., Bagumbayan
Quezon City 1110, Philippines
Tel. Nos.: (63-2) 635-0843 / (63-2) 635-0851
Fax No.: (63-2) 635-0861
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Fabrication Shop:
Barangay Sta. Maria, Bauan
Batangas, Philippines
Tel. Nos.: (63-43) 727-1601 to 03 / (63-43) 717-1271
Fax No.: (63-43) 727-1727

Email Address: eeicenter@eei.com.ph
Website Accress: http://www.eei.com.ph
Mailing Address:
P.O. Box 287 ACPO Cubao, Quezon City, Philippines
P.O. Box 7160 Domestic Airport Post Ofﬁce, Pasay City 3120, Philippines

Corporate Ofﬁce & Construction Division:
12 Manggahan St., Bagumbayan
Quezon City 1110, Philippines
Tel. Nos.: (63-2) 635-0843 / (63-2) 635-0851
Fax No.: (63-2) 635-0861

Fabrication Shop:
Barangay Sta. Maria, Bauan
Batangas, Philippines
Tel. Nos.: (63-43) 727-1601 to 03 / (63-43) 717-1271
Fax No.: (63-43) 727-1727

Email Address: eeicenter@eei.com.ph
Website Accress: http://www.eei.com.ph
Mailing Address:
P.O. Box 287 ACPO Cubao, Quezon City, Philippines
P.O. Box 7160 Domestic Airport Post Ofﬁce, Pasay City 3120, Philippines
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EEI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
December 31
2016



2015
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Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6)
Receivables (Note 7)
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings
on uncompleted contracts (Note 8)
Due from related parties (Note 27)
Inventories (Note 9)
Other current assets (Note 10)
Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets
Investments in associates and joint ventures (Note 11)
Available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets (Note 12)
Investment properties (Note 14)
Property and equipment (Note 13)
Retirement assets (Note 28)
Deferred tax assets - net (Note 26)
Other noncurrent assets (Note 15)
Total Noncurrent Assets

P
=1,029,018,227
6,727,540,336

=1,270,242,080
P
6,339,948,341

4,192,250,584
79,415,085
558,737,219
981,228,652
13,568,190,103

5,946,503,761
74,552,130
448,318,138
720,822,342
14,800,386,792

1,269,935,971
368,030,884
203,480,382
4,481,549,476
9,939,515
83,999,489
217,968,323
6,634,904,040
P
=20,203,094,143

2,265,940,563
370,456,224
231,228,384
4,357,137,503
7,280,197
109,691,793
329,611,945
7,671,346,609
=22,471,733,401
P

P
=2,950,000,000
4,999,622,397
3,671,560
285,714,286
164,538,085

=3,330,000,000
P
5,277,110,575
7,762,154
285,714,286
156,583,327

4,652,903,301
16,641,303
13,073,090,932

4,983,318,365
18,903,475
14,059,392,182

1,214,285,714
71,992,738
1,286,278,452
14,359,369,384

1,500,000,000
131,098,662
1,631,098,662
15,690,490,844

1,036,401,386
477,037,443
(3,720,790)
187,429,673
4,146,577,047
5,843,724,759
P
=20,203,094,143

1,036,401,386
477,037,443
(3,720,790)
69,990,158
5,201,534,360
6,781,242,557
=22,471,733,401
P

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Bank loans (Note 16)
Accounts payable and other current liabilities (Note 17)
Income tax payable (Note 26)
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 18)
Due to related parties (Note 27)
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings
on uncompleted contracts (Note 8)
Customers’ deposits
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-term debt - net of current portion (Note 18)
Retirement liabilities (Note 28)
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity
Capital stock - =
P1 par value (Notes 19 and 31)
Authorized - 2,000,000,000 shares
Issued - 1,036,401,386 shares
Additional paid-in capital
Treasury stock
Other comprehensive income - net (Notes 12 and 28)
Retained earnings (Note 32)
Total Equity

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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EEI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Years Ended December 31
2015
2016
REVENUE
Construction contracts
Services
Merchandise sales
Real estate sales
Equity in net earnings (losses) of associates and
joint ventures (Note 11)
Interest income (Note 24)
Other income - net (Note 25)

COSTS
Construction contracts (Note 20)
Services (Note 21)
Merchandise sales (Note 22)
Real estate sales (Note 9)

P
= 13,826,137,816
837,751,325
151,925,069
19,778,021
14,835,592,231

=17,951,605,599
P
857,814,110
161,510,267
7,998,576
18,978,928,552

2014

=15,708,635,605
P
1,182,902,192
169,990,675
18,358,731
17,079,887,203

(1,316,130,128)
61,329,134
9,262,881
13,590,054,118

(676,309,562)
28,750,588
70,794,563
18,402,164,141

423,796,203
35,082,174
42,212,202
17,580,977,782

12,126,749,307
690,118,889
128,723,605
13,935,705
12,959,527,506

15,815,224,732
793,036,707
128,776,339
5,605,693
16,742,643,471

14,261,798,939
936,936,558
136,923,345
14,647,753
15,350,306,595

2016
NET INCOME (LOSS)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Item not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Remeasurement gains (losses) on retirement liabilities
(Note 28)
Income tax effect
Items to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Cumulative translation adjustments
Net unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale
financial assets (Note 12)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(P
= 847,701,016)

Years Ended December 31
2015
2014
=202,734,329
P

=918,273,849
P

(45,216,989)
13,565,097
(31,651,892)

216,085,262
(64,825,579)
151,259,683

110,020,861

160,874,867

12,531,799

(2,425,340)
117,439,515

(2,892,527)
126,330,448

1,557,656
165,349,138

14,062,849
(4,218,855)
9,843,994

(P
= 730,261,501)

=329,064,777
P

=1,083,622,987
P

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
SELLING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
(Note 23)
FINANCE COSTS AND OTHER EXPENSES - Net
Interest expense - promissory notes (Notes 16 and 18)
Interest expense - finance lease
Foreign exchange losses (gains) - net

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 26)
Current
Deferred
NET INCOME (LOSS)

1,086,419,677

856,637,733

788,775,950

162,772,755
−
3,457,907
166,230,662

136,421,295
4,913
30,124,959
166,551,167

123,593,807
89,060
(119,170)
123,563,697

(622,123,727)

636,331,770

204,103,840
21,473,449
225,577,289

435,924,643
(2,327,202)
433,597,441

1,318,331,540

384,587,214
15,470,477
400,057,691

(P
= 847,701,016)

=202,734,329
P

=918,273,849
P

(P
= 0.8180)

=0.1956
P

=0.8861
P

Earnings (Loss) Per Share - Basic and Diluted
(Note 29)
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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P
=5,843,724,759
P
=4,146,577,047
P
=187,429,673
P
=4,054,052

2016

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Balances at December 31, 2016

P
=1,036,401,386 P
=477,037,443 (P
=3,720,790)

(P
=104,942,615)

P
=288,318,236

6,781,242,557
(847,701,016)
117,439,515
(730,261,501)
(207,256,297)
5,201,534,360
(847,701,016)
−
(847,701,016)
(207,256,297)
69,990,158
−
117,439,515
117,439,515
−
6,479,392
−
(2,425,340)
(2,425,340)
−
477,037,443
−
−
−
−
Balances at December 31, 2015
Net loss
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive loss
Dividends declared

1,036,401,386
−
−
−
−

(3,720,790)
−
−
−
−

(114,786,609)
−
9,843,994
9,843,994
−

178,297,375
−
110,020,861
110,020,861
−

6,659,458,057
202,734,329
126,330,448
329,064,777
(207,280,277)
5,206,080,308
202,734,329
−
202,734,329
(207,280,277)
(56,340,290)
−
126,330,448
126,330,448
−
9,371,919
−
(2,892,527)
(2,892,527)
−
(83,134,717)
−
(31,651,892)
(31,651,892)
−
477,037,443
–
–
–
–
Balances at December 31, 2014
Net income
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Dividends declared

1,036,401,386
–
–
–
–

(3,720,790)
−
−
−
−

17,422,508
−
160,874,867
160,874,867
−

P
=5,783,115,347
918,273,849
165,349,138
1,083,622,987
(207,280,277)
P
=4,495,086,736
918,273,849
–
918,273,849
(207,280,277)
(P
=221,689,428)
−
165,349,138
165,349,138
−
P
=7,814,263
–
1,557,656
1,557,656
–
P
=4,890,709
–
12,531,799
12,531,799
–
(P
=234,394,400)
–
151,259,683
151,259,683
–

Additional
Paid-In
Capital
Capital Stock
(Notes 19
and 31)

P
=1,036,401,386 P
=477,037,443 (P
=3,720,790)
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
Balances at December 31, 2013
Net income
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Dividends declared

Total
Subtotal

Retained
Earnings
(Note 32)
Net Unrealized
Gain on
Cumulative AFS Financial
Assets
Translation
(Note 12)
Adjustments

Other Comprehensive Income - Net of Deferred Tax Effect

Remeasurement
Losses on
Retirement
Liability
Treasury
(Note 28)
Stock

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016, 2015 AND 2014
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EEI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income (loss) before income tax
Adjustments for:
Equity in net losses (earnings) of associates and joint
ventures (Note 11)
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 13, 14 and 15)
Interest expense (Notes 16 and 18)
Unrealized foreign exchange loss - net
Loss on liquidation of subsidiaries (Note 25)
Loss on sale of property and equipment (Note 25)
Dividend income
Gain on sale of investment properties (Note 25)
Interest income
Movements in net retirement liabilities
Operating income before working capital changes
Decrease (increase) in:
Receivables
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings
on uncompleted contracts
Due from related parties
Inventories
Other current assets
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities
Due to related parties
Customers’ deposits
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings
on uncompleted contracts
Net cash flows generated from operations
Interest received
Interest paid
Income taxes paid
Net cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposals of:
Property and equipment
Investment properties
Acquisitions of:
Property and equipment (Note 13)
Investment properties (Note 14)
Investments in associates (Note 11)
AFS financial assets (Note 12)
Software costs (Note 15)
Decrease (increase) in other noncurrent assets (Note 15)
Dividends received
Net cash flows used in investing activities

Years Ended December 31
2015
2014

(P
=622,123,727)

=636,331,770 P
P
=1,318,331,540

1,316,130,128
633,612,489
162,772,755
(777,969)
26,174,418
291,180
(66,723)
(11,707,531)
(61,329,134)
(47,702,393)
1,395,273,493

676,309,562
520,729,599
136,426,208
39,623,663
−
−
(7,873,504)
(5,390,206)
(28,750,588)
(14,132,937)
1,953,273,567

(367,467,210)

(423,796,203)
407,908,328
123,682,867
3,874,776
−
−
(24,472)
–
(35,082,174)
5,894,536
1,400,789,198

(373,007,743) (2,244,858,499)

1,733,563,958 (1,899,331,796) (2,448,952,573)
(15,279,380)
(9,434,517)
23,590,220
(11,357,553)
(17,862,012)
(110,419,081)
17,264,993
(286,727,138)
45,956,661
(272,647,160)
14,301,646
(2,262,172)

686,531,159
26,644,967
(26,693,748)

(330,415,064)
2,129,475,291
61,668,646
(164,920,621)
(374,231,232)
1,651,992,084

1,942,619,768
2,300,664,234
35,060,744
(133,625,938)
(420,708,399)
1,781,390,641

2,749,322
33,916,695

5,466,157
26,134,425

(734,971,232) (1,136,775,501)
−
−
(901,276,990)
(294,869,355)
(167,505,224)
−
(2,463,081)
−
(44,640,073)
(32,750,425)
7,873,504
66,723
(1,025,858,272) (2,213,186,783)

1,856,010,900
3,679,108
11,076,671
1,952,787,877
216,509,015
29,336,466
(115,330,554)
(423,966,882)
(293,451,955)

5,936,814
–
(497,959,262)
(12,200,000)
(122,250,000)
–
(3,325,547)
30,203,791
233,222,659
(366,371,545)
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Years Ended December 31
2015
2014
2016
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from:
Bank loans (Note 16)
Long-term debt (Note 18)
Payments of:
Bank loans (Note 16)
Long-term debt (Note 18)
Cash dividends
Decrease in other noncurrent liabilities
Net cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities
EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR (Note 6)
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

P10,970,000,000 =
P6,655,000,000
P
=9,875,000,000 =
442,454,200
− 1,500,000,000

EEI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

EEI Corporation (the Parent Company) is a stock corporation incorporated on April 17, 1931 under the laws of the Philippines. On
July 15, 1980, the Parent Company’s corporate life was extended for another fifty years starting April 17, 1981. The Parent Company
is engaged in general contracting and construction equipment rental. Its registered office address is No. 12 Manggahan Street,
Bagumbayan, Quezon City.

(10,255,000,000) (10,465,000,000) (6,502,000,000)
(678,626,485)
(53,571,429)
(285,714,286)
(207,280,277)
(207,280,277)
(207,256,297)
(281,259)
(3,518,477)
−
331,084,017
(872,970,583) 1,118,811,979
5,612,918
(241,223,853)

19,376,861

(5,265,692)

706,392,698

(334,005,175)

The Parent Company’s shares of stock are publicly traded at the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). It is a subsidiary of House of
Investments, Inc., which is also incorporated in the Philippines. The ultimate parent company of EEI Corporation is Pan Malayan
Management and Investment Corporation (PMMIC).
The consolidated financial statements were approved for issue by its Board of Directors (BOD) on March 10, 2017.

2.

563,849,382

897,854,557

=1,270,242,080
P
=1,029,018,227 P

=563,849,382
P

1,270,242,080

Corporate Information

Basis of Preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets
which have been measured at fair value. The accompanying consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso (P
=),
which is also the Parent Company’s functional currency. Except as indicated, all amounts are rounded off to the nearest Peso.
Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).
Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the Parent Company and the following companies that it controls:

EEI Limited (formerly EEI BVI Ltd.)
Clear Jewel Investments, Ltd. (CJIL)
EEI Corporation (Singapore) Pte. Ltd*
EEI Nouvelle-Caledonie SARL*
Nimaridge Investments, Limited
EEI (PNG), Ltd
EEI Corporation (Guam), Inc.
EEI Construction and Marine, Inc.
EEI Realty Corporation (EEI Realty)
EEI Subic Corporation
Equipment Engineers, Inc. (EE)
JP Systems Asia Inc. (JPSAI)**
EEI Power Corporation (EPC)
Gulf Asia International Corporation (GAIC)
GAIC Professional Services, Inc. (GAPSI)
GAIC Manpower Services, Inc. (GAMSI)
Bagumbayan Equipment & Industrial
Products, Inc.
Philmark, Inc.
Philrock Construction and Services, Inc.

Place of Incorporation
British Virgin Islands
British Virgin Islands
Singapore
New Caledonia
British Virgin Islands
Papua New Guinea
United States of
America
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines

Nature of Business
Holding company
Holding company
Construction
Construction
Holding company
Holding company
Construction

Functional Currency
US Dollar
US Dollar
Singapore Dollar
French Franc
US Dollar
US Dollar
US Dollar
Philippine Peso
Philippine Peso
Philippine Peso
Philippine Peso
Philippine Peso

Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines

Construction
Real estate
Construction
Construction
Rental of scaffolding
and formworks
Power generation
Manpower services
Manpower services
Manpower services
Consultancy services

Philippines
Philippines

Construction
Manpower services

Philippine Peso
Philippine Peso

Philippine Peso
Philippine Peso
Philippine Peso
Philippine Peso
Philippine Peso

Percentage of Ownership
2016
2015
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
100
‒
100
‒
‒
100
‒
100
‒
‒
‒
100
‒
‒
‒
100
‒
100
‒
100
−
100
−
100
100
‒
100
‒
100
100
100
100

‒
‒
‒
‒

100
100
100
100

‒
‒
‒
‒

‒
84
100
‒
‒

60
16
‒
100
100

‒
84
100
‒
‒

‒
16
‒
100
100

100
100
100

‒
‒
‒

100
100
100

‒
‒
‒

*Liquidated in 2016
**Incorporated in December 2016

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group
has:
a)
b)
c)

62

EEI CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2016

power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee);
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.
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Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the Group
has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:
a)
b)
c)

the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
rights arising from other contractual arrangements
the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2017


Amendment to PFRS 12, Clarification of the Scope of the Standard (Part of Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016
Cycle)



Amendments to PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows, Disclosure Initiative
The amendments to PAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes
(such as foreign exchange gains or losses). On initial application of the amendments, entities are not required to provide
comparative information for preceding periods. Early application of the amendments is permitted.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statements of income and consolidated statements of comprehensive income from the date
the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Application of amendments will result in additional disclosures in the 2017 consolidated financial statements of the Group.


Subsidiaries are entities over which the Parent Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of
acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date when such control
ceases.
The consolidated financial statements are prepared with the same financial reporting period as the Parent Company using the
consistent accounting policies. All significant intercompany balances and transactions, intercompany profits and expenses and gains
and losses are eliminated during consolidation.

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2018



Amendments to PFRS 2, Share-based Payment, Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions
Amendments to PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts, Applying PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, with PFRS 4



PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
PFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under PFRS
15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer. The principles in PFRS 15 provide a more structured approach to
measuring and recognizing revenue.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the Group
loses control over a subsidiary, it:








3.

derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;
derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests;
derecognizes the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
recognizes the fair value of the consideration received;
recognizes the fair value of any investment retained;
recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss; and
reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognized in OCI to profit or loss or retained earnings, as
appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

The new revenue standard is applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under
PFRSs. Either a full or modified retrospective application is required for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2018.
The Group is currently assessing the impact of PFRS 15.


Changes in Accounting Policies
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except that the Group has adopted the
following new accounting pronouncements starting January 1, 2016. Adoption of these pronouncements did not have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial position or performance unless otherwise indicated.









Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28, Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception
Amendments to PFRS 11, Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations
PFRS 14, Regulatory Deferral Accounts
Amendments to PAS 1, Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 38, Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization
Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 41, Agriculture: Bearer Plants
Amendments to PAS 27, Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle
•
Amendment to PFRS 5, Changes in Methods of Disposal
•
Amendment to PFRS 7, Servicing Contracts
•
Amendment to PFRS 7, Applicability of the Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Financial Statements
•
Amendment to PAS 19, Discount Rate: Regional Market Issue
•
Amendment to PAS 34, Disclosure of Information ‘Elsewhere in the Interim Financial Report’

Standards issued but not yet effective
Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are listed below. Unless otherwise indicated, the Group does not expect that the future
adoption of the said pronouncements to have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements. The Group intends to
adopt the following pronouncements when they become effective.
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Amendments to PAS 12, Income Taxes, Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments
PFRS 9 reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for classification and
measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting. PFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2018, with early application permitted. Retrospective application is required, but providing comparative information is not
compulsory. For hedge accounting, the requirements are generally applied prospectively, with some limited exceptions.
The adoption of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets and
impairment methodology for financial assets, but will have no impact on the classification and measurement of the Group’s
financial liabilities. The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting this standard.



Amendments to PAS 28, Measuring an Associate or Joint Venture at Fair Value (Part of Annual Improvements to PFRSs
2014 - 2016 Cycle)



Amendments to PAS 40, Investment Property, Transfers of Investment Property
The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under construction or development into,
or out of investment property. The amendments state that a change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to
meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management’s
intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The amendments should be applied
prospectively to changes in use that occur on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first
applies the amendments. Retrospective application is only permitted if this is possible without the use of hindsight.



Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
The interpretation clarifies that in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance
consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognizes the nonmonetary asset or nonmonetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the
entity must determine a date of the transactions for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. The interpretation
may be applied on a fully retrospective basis. Entities may apply the interpretation prospectively to all assets, expenses and
income in its scope that are initially recognized on or after the beginning of the reporting period in which the entity first
applies the interpretation or the beginning of a prior reporting period presented as comparative information in the financial
statements of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the interpretation.
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Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2019


PFRS 16, Leases
Under the new standard, lessees will no longer classify their leases as either operating or finance leases in accordance with
PAS 17, Leases. Rather, lessees will apply the single-asset model. Under this model, lessees will recognize the assets and
related liabilities for most leases on their balance sheets, and subsequently, will depreciate the lease assets and recognize
interest on the lease liabilities in their profit or loss. Leases with a term of 12 months or less or for which the underlying
asset is of low value are exempted from these requirements.
The accounting by lessors is substantially unchanged as the new standard carries forward the principles of lessor accounting
under PAS 17. Lessors, however, will be required to disclose more information in their financial statements, particularly on
the risk exposure to residual value.
Entities may early adopt PFRS 16 but only if they have also adopted PFRS 15. When adopting PFRS 16, an entity is
permitted to use either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach, with options to use certain transition reliefs.
The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting PFRS 16.

Deferred effectivity


4.

Sale of developed lots and residential units is accounted for using the full accrual method of accounting. Under this method, the
revenue is recognized when: (a) the collectability of the sales price is reasonably assured; (b) the earnings process is virtually
complete; and (c) the seller does not have a substantial continuing involvement with the subject properties. The collectability of the
sales price is considered reasonably assured when: (a) the buyers have actually confirmed their acceptance of the related loan
applications after the same have been delivered to and approved by either the banks or other financing institutions for externally
financed accounts; and (b) the down payment comprising a substantial portion of the contract price is received and the capacity to pay
and credit worthiness of buyers have been reasonably established for sales under the deferred cash payment arrangement.
If any of the criteria under the full accrual method is not met, the deposit method is applied until all the conditions for recording a sale
are met. Pending recognition of sale, cash received from buyers is recognized as deposit from customers presented under the
“Customers’ deposits” account in the liabilities section of the consolidated statement of financial position.
Cost of real estate sales
Cost of real estate sales is recognized consistent with the revenue recognition method applied.
The cost of inventory recognized in profit or loss on disposal is determined with reference to the specific costs incurred on the
property and an allocation of any non-specific cost based on the relative size of the property sold.
Interest income
Revenue is recognized as interest accrues using the effective interest method.

Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

Significant Accounting Policies
Revenue and Cost Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be
reliably measured. The Group assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as
principal or agent. In arrangements where the Group is acting as principal to its customers, revenue is recognized on a gross basis.
However, if the Group is acting as an agent to its customers, only the amount of net commission retained is recognized as revenue.
The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
Construction contracts
Revenue from construction contracts are recognized using the percentage-of-completion method of accounting. Under this method,
revenues are generally measured on the basis of estimated completion of the physical proportion of the contract work. Revenue from
labor supply contracts with project management and supervision are recognized on the basis of man-hours spent.
Contract costs include all direct materials and labor costs and those indirect costs related to contract performance. Expected losses on
contracts are recognized immediately when it is probable that the total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue. The amount of
such loss is determined irrespective of whether or not work has commenced on the contract; the stage of completion of contract
activity; or the amount of profits expected to arise on other contracts, which are not treated as a single construction contract. Changes
in contract performance, contract conditions and estimated profitability, including those arising from contract penalty provisions and
final contract settlements that may result in revisions to estimated costs and gross margins are recognized in the year in which the changes
are determined. Profit incentives are recognized as revenue when their realization is reasonably assured.
The asset “Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts” represents total costs incurred and estimated
earnings recognized in excess of amounts billed. The liability “Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted
contracts” represents billings in excess of total costs incurred and estimated earnings recognized. Contract retentions are presented as part
of “Trade receivables” under the “Receivables” account in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Services
Revenue is recognized as the related services are rendered. Revenue derived from the generation and/or supply of electricity is
recognized based on the actual delivery of electricity as agreed upon between parties.
Merchandise sales
Revenue from merchandise sales is normally recognized when the buyer accepts delivery and when installation and inspection are
complete. However, revenue is recognized immediately upon the buyer’s acceptance of delivery when the installation process is
simple in nature. Cost of merchandise sold is recognized as an expense when the related goods are sold.
Equipment rental
Revenue from equipment rental arises from the Group’s equipment that are being held for rentals. Revenue is recognized as it
accrues.

Expenses
Expenses are recognized in the consolidated statement of income when decrease in future economic benefits related to a decrease in an
asset or an increase of a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably.
Selling and administrative expenses
Selling expenses are costs incurred to sell goods and services. They include advertising among others. Administrative expenses
constitute costs of administering the business. Selling and administrative expenses are expensed as incurred.
Current versus Noncurrent Classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in consolidated statement of financial position based on
current/noncurrent classification. An asset as current when it is:

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realized within twelve (12) months after the reporting period or

Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after
the financial reporting period
All other assets are classified as noncurrent.
A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve (12) months after the financial reporting period or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve (12) months after the reporting
period
The Group classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent assets and
liabilities.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash with original maturities of three (3) months or less and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value.
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Date of recognition
The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the consolidated statement of financial position when it becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognized on the settlement date. The Group follows the
settlement date accounting where an asset to be received and liability to be paid are recognized on the settlement date and
derecognition of an asset that is sold and the recognition of a receivable from the buyer are recognized on the settlement date.

Real estate sales
Revenue on sale of raw parcels of land with no future obligation to develop the property is recognized using the full accrual method.
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Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. Except for financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL), the initial measurement of financial assets and liabilities includes transaction costs. The Group classifies its financial
assets in the following categories: financial assets at FVPL, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, AFS financial assets, and loans and
receivables. The Group classifies its financial liabilities into financial liabilities at FVPL and other financial liabilities. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired and whether they are quoted in an active market.
Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates
such designation at every reporting date.
Fair value measurement
Fair value is the estimated price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

AFS financial assets
AFS financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as AFS or are not classified in any of the three other
categories. After initial recognition, AFS financial assets are measured at fair value with gains or losses being recognized as a
separate component of the equity until the investment is derecognized or until the investment is determined to be impaired at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in the equity is included in the consolidated statements of income. AFS financial
assets which are expected to be sold within twelve (12) months from the reporting date are classified under current assets. Otherwise,
these are classified as noncurrent assets.
The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organized financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market bid
prices at the close of business on the reporting date. For investments where there is no active market, except for investments in
unquoted AFS financial assets, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s length
market transactions, reference to the current market value of another instrument which is substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis and option pricing models. In the absence of a reliable basis of determining fair value, investments in unquoted AFS
financial assets are carried at cost less allowance for impairment losses, if any.
The Group’s AFS financial assets represent investments in quoted and unquoted equity shares.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are categorized within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:




Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable
Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each financial reporting period.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
‘Day 1’ difference
Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different to the fair value from other observable current market transactions in
the same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable market, the Group
recognizes the difference between the transaction price and fair value (a ‘Day 1’ difference) in the consolidated statements of income
unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset or liability. In cases where use is made of data which is not observable,
the difference between the transaction price and model value is only recognized in the consolidated statements of income when the
inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Group determines the appropriate method
of recognizing the ‘Day 1’ difference amount.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Such assets are carried at amortized cost using the EIR method less any allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and include fees that are an integral part of the EIR and transaction costs.
Long-term receivables are valued using the discounted cash flow methodology. Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated
statements of income when the loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process.
Loans and receivables which are expected to be realized within twelve months from the reporting date are classified under current
assets. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Group’s loans and receivables include trade receivables, consultancy fees, due from related
parties, miscellaneous deposits, receivable from sale of investment properties, receivable from EEI Retirement Fund, Inc., receivable
from a customer and other receivables.
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Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are initially recognized at the fair value of the consideration received less directly attributable transaction
costs. Financial liabilities are classified under this category if they are not held for trading or not designated as FVPL upon the
inception of the liability.
After initial recognition, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any issue costs, and any discount or premium on settlement.
Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of income when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the
amortization process.
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Group’s other financial liabilities include accounts payable and other current liabilities, bank
loans, long-term debt and due to related parties.
Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that a borrower or a group of borrowers are experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganization and where observable data indicate that there is measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
Assets carried at amortized cost
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original EIR (that is, the EIR computed
at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance account.
The amount of the loss shall be recognized in the consolidated statement of income. Loans and receivables, together with the
associated allowance accounts, are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realized.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was
recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in
the consolidated statement of income, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the
reversal date.
AFS financial assets
For AFS financial assets, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets is impaired.
In the case of equity investments classified as AFS financial assets, this would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the investments below its cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income is removed from equity and recognized in the consolidated statement of income.
Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through the consolidated statement of income. Increases in fair value after
impairment are recognized directly in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:
(a) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or (b) the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (i) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (ii) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
Financial Liabilities
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or has expired. Where an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated statement of income.
Offsetting of Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statements of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to set off the recognized amounts and there is intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The Group assesses that it has a currently enforceable right of offset if the right is not
contingent on a future event, and is legally enforceable in the normal course of business, event of default, and event of insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Group and all of the counterparties.
Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). Cost includes purchase price and other costs directly
attributable to its acquisition such as non-refundable taxes, handling and transportation cost. The cost of real estate inventories
includes (a) land cost; (b) freehold and leasehold rights for land; (c) amounts paid to contractors for construction; (d) borrowing costs,
planning and design cost, cost of site preparation, professional fees, property taxes, construction overheads and other related costs that
are directly attributable in bringing the real estate inventories to its intended condition.

In 2015, the Group acquired 44% stake in PetroSolar Corporation (PSoC) and was accounted for as an associate.
An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture. A joint
venture is a contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an economic activity that is subject to joint control, and a
jointly controlled entity is a joint venture that involves the establishment of a separate entity in which each venturer has an interest.
Investments in associate and joint venture which are jointly controlled entities are accounted for under the equity method of
accounting. Under this method, the cost of investment is increased or decreased by the equity in the associate and joint venture’s net
earnings or losses since the date of acquisition and reduced by dividends received. Unrealized intercompany profits are eliminated up
to the extent of the proportionate share thereof.
The reporting dates and the accounting policies of the associate and joint venture conform to those used by the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment, except for land, are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization and impairment loss, if
any. Land is carried at cost less any impairment in value. The initial cost of property, plant and equipment consists of its purchase
price, including import duties, taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use. Expenditures incurred after the assets have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are normally
charged to operation in the year in which the costs are incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditures have resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property
and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as an additional cost of
property and equipment.
The estimated useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the periods and method
of depreciation and amortization are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property and equipment.
Depreciation or amortization of an item of property equipment begins when it becomes available for use, i.e., when it is in the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Depreciation or amortization ceases
at the earlier of the date that the item is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale) in
accordance with PFRS 5, Noncurrent Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, and the date the item is derecognized.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Cost of inventories is generally determined using the moving-average method, except for land inventory of EEI Realty and cost of
equipment inventories of Equipment Engineers, which is accounted for using the specific identification method.
NRV is the current replacement cost.
Nonrefundable commissions paid to sales or marketing agents on the sale of real estate units are expensed when paid.
Value-Added Tax (VAT)
Input VAT is recognized when the Group purchases goods or services from a VAT registered supplier or vendor. This account is
offset against any output VAT previously recognized.
Output VAT pertains to the 12% tax due on the Group’s sales of goods and services.
The outstanding balance of output VAT is included under accounts payable and other current liabilities while the input VAT is
included under other current assets.
Prepaid Expenses
These are recorded as asset before they are utilized and apportioned over the period covered by the payment and charged to the
appropriate account in the consolidated statement of income when incurred.
Other Current Assets
Other current assets pertain to other resources controlled by the Group as a result of past events and from which future economic
benefits are expected to flow to the Group within the financial reporting period.
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
The Group has 49% investment in Al-Rushaid Construction Company Limited (ARCC) which is incorporated and based in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and is currently accounted for as an associate.
In 2013, the Group acquired 20% stake in Petro Wind Energy, Inc. (PWEI) and was accounted for as an associate. In 2014,
investment in PWEI is accounted as joint venture due to change in equity ownership in PWEI after the Shareholders Agreement
became in effect (Note 11).
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Machinery, tools and construction equipment
Buildings and improvements
Transportation and service equipment
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment

Number of years
1 - 20
10 - 20
5
3-5

Amortization of improvements is computed over the estimated useful life of the improvement or term of the lease, whichever is
shorter.
Construction in progress represents property and equipment under construction and is stated at cost. This includes cost of construction
and equipment and other direct costs. Construction in progress are reclassified to the appropriate class of property and equipment
when construction of the asset is completed.
Property and equipment are written off when either these are disposed of or when these are permanently withdrawn from use and there
is no more future economic benefits expected from their use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated
statement of income in the year the asset is derecognized.
When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and their related accumulated depreciation and amortization and any
impairment in value are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is credited to or charged against current operations.
Investment Properties
Investment properties, except for land, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any, including
transaction costs. The carrying amount includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is
incurred if the recognition criteria are met. Land is carried at cost less any impairment in value.
Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.
Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from investment property to
owner-occupied property or inventory, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the carrying value of the investment property
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transferred at the date of change in use. If owner-occupied property or inventory becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property and equipment or inventory, respectively, up to the date of
change in use.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of fifteen (15) to twenty (20) years.
Software Costs
Software costs are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any impairment in value. Costs related to software purchased by
the Group for use in the operations are amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of three (3) years.
Costs associated with developing and maintaining computer software programs are recognized as an expense when incurred. Costs
that are directly associated with identifiable and unique software controlled by the Group and will generate economic benefits
exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognized as intangible assets to be measured at cost less accumulated amortization and
provision for impairment losses, if any.
Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets
For property, plant and equipment, software costs, investments in associate and joint venture and investment properties, the Group
assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and
is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
In determining fair value less cost to sell, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transaction can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for
publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

Upon disposal of a foreign subsidiary, the deferred cumulative amount recognized in other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognized in the consolidated statements of income.
Retirement Benefits
The net defined benefit liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the
financial reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan assets (if any), adjusted for any effect of limiting a net pension asset to the
asset ceiling. The asset ceiling is the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan.
The cost of providing benefits under the pension plans is actuarially determined using the projected unit credit method.
Pension expenses comprise the following:
a)
b)
c)

Service cost
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset
Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-routine settlements are recognized as
expense in profit or loss.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That
increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the consolidated statement of income
unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss on the earlier of:

After such reversal, the depreciation and amortization charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying
amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net pension liability or asset that arises
from the passage of time which is determined by applying the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined benefit
liability or asset. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in profit or loss.

Borrowing Costs
Interest and other related financing charges on borrowed funds used to finance property development are capitalized as part of
development costs (included under “Inventories” account) and the acquisition and construction of a qualifying asset (included under
“Construction in progress” account in property and equipment) are capitalized to the appropriate asset accounts. Capitalization of
borrowing costs commences when the expenditures and borrowing costs are being incurred during the construction and related
activities necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use are in progress. It is suspended during extended periods in which active
development is interrupted and ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use are
complete. The capitalization for inventories account is based on the weighted average borrowing cost and specific borrowing for
property and equipment.
The borrowing costs capitalized as part of property and equipment are amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets. If after capitalization of the borrowing costs, the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, an impairment loss is recorded in the consolidated statement of income.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Foreign Currency-denominated Transactions and Translation
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso (P
=), which is the Parent Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency.
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded using the applicable exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
Outstanding monetary assets and monetary liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated using the applicable rate of
exchange at the end of reporting period. Foreign exchange gains or losses are recognized in the Group’s statements of income.
Nonmonetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the
dates of initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was determined.
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The functional currencies of EEI Limited and Subsidiaries, the Group’s subsidiaries, are United States Dollar, Singaporean Dollar and
Saudi Arabia Riyal. As at reporting date, the assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (the Philippine Peso) at the closing rate as at the reporting date, and the consolidated statements of income accounts are
translated at monthly weighted average exchange rate. The exchange differences arising on the translation of foreign subsidiaries are
taken directly to a separate component of equity under cumulative translation adjustments account while the exchange differences
arising from translation of financial statements of its associate is included as part of investments in associate under the caption equity
in cumulative translation adjustments account.
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The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
The date that the Group recognizes related restructuring costs

These amounts are calculated periodically by independent qualified actuaries.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in the effect of the asset ceiling
(excluding net interest on defined benefit liability) are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income in the period in which
they arise. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Fair value of plan assets is based on market price information. When no market price is available, the fair value of plan assets is
estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and
the maturity or expected disposal date of those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected period until the settlement of the
related obligations). If the fair value of the plan assets is higher than the present value of the defined benefit obligation, the
measurement of the resulting defined benefit asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of refunds
from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.
Plan assets are not available to the creditors of the Group, nor can they be paid directly to the Group.
The Group’s right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined benefit obligation is recognized as a
separate asset at fair value when and only when reimbursement is virtually certain.
Income Tax
Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries
where the Group operates and generates taxable income.
Current tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the consolidated statements of income.
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Stock Option Plan
No benefit expense is recognized relative to the shares issued under the stock options plan. When the shares related to the stock
options plan are subscribed, these are treated as capital stock issuances. The stock option plan is exempt from PFRS 2, Share-based
Payment.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the financial reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:



Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income applicable to common shares by the weighted average number of
common shares issued and outstanding during the year, after retroactive adjustments for any subsequent stock dividends. Diluted
earnings per share, if applicable, is computed by dividing net income applicable to common shares by the weighted average number of
common shares issued and outstanding during the year after giving effect to assumed exercise of stock options and retroactive effect
of stock dividends declared.

When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits from excess minimum
corporate income tax (MCIT) over regular corporate income tax (RCIT) and net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and carryforward of unused
MCIT and NOLCO can be utilized.

Segment Reporting
The Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of services provided, with each
segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves different markets. Financial information on
business segments is presented in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

Capital Stock
The Group records common stocks at par value and additional paid-in capital in excess of the total contributions received over the
aggregate par values of the equity shares. Incremental costs incurred directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in
equity as a deduction from proceeds, net of tax. When the Group purchases its own shares of capital stock (treasury shares), the
consideration paid, including any attributable incremental costs, is deducted from equity until the shares are cancelled or reissued of.
Where such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable incremental
transaction costs and the related tax effects is included in equity.




when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss
in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in associates and interests in joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized

Retained Earnings
Retained earnings represent the cumulative balance of periodic net income or loss, prior period adjustments, effect of changes in
accounting policy and other capital adjustments. The individual accumulated retained earnings of the subsidiaries are available for
dividends when they are declared by the subsidiaries as approved by their respective BOD. Retained earnings are further restricted for
the payment of dividends to the extent of the cost of treasury shares (Note 32).

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be used. Unrecognized deferred tax assets
are re-assessed at each financial reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit
will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Events after the Financial Reporting Date
Any post year-end events up to the date of auditor’s report that provide additional information about the Group’s position at the
reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post year-end events that are not adjusting
events are disclosed when material, in notes the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realized or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the financial reporting date.
Deferred income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized in correlation to the underlying transactions either
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same entity and the same taxation authority.
Operating Leases
Operating leases represent those leases under which substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the leased assets remain with
the lessors. Lease receipts (payments) under operating lease agreements are recognized as income (expense) on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

5.

Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates
The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities
affected in future periods. The effects of any changes in estimates will be reflected in the consolidated financial statements as they
become reasonably determinable. Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The following presents a summary of these significant accounting judgments and estimates:

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and, where appropriate,
the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as
interest expense.
Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the receipt
of the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is recognized in profit or loss, net of any
reimbursement.
Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are disclosed unless the possibility of an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial
statements but are disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Judgments
Contingencies
The Group is involved in various claims in the ordinary course of business. The estimate of the probable costs for the resolution of
these claims has been developed in consultation with outside counsel is based upon an analysis of potential results. The Group’s
management believes that the outcome of these claims will not have a material adverse effect on the Group’s financial position or
operating results. It is possible, however, that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in estimates or in
the effectiveness of the strategies relating to these claims.
Estimates and Assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
Recognition of revenue and cost from construction contracts
Revenues and costs from construction projects are determined using the percentage of completion based on the physical progress of

74

EEI CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2016

EEI CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2016

75

the construction projects. Apart from involving significant estimates, this process is complex and requires the technical expertise of
the Group’s engineers, particularly with respect to the calculation of estimated costs to completion.

Trade receivables mainly pertain to amounts arising from domestic and foreign construction contracts. These receivables are based on
the monthly progress billings provided to customers over the period of the construction. These trade receivables are generally on a 30day credit term.

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts amounted
to P
=4,192.3 million and P
=5,946.5 million, respectively. Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts
amounted to P
=4,652.9 million and P
=4,983.3 million as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 8).

Movements in the allowance for doubtful accounts for the years ended December 31 follow:

Estimation of allowance for doubtful accounts
The Group maintains allowances for doubtful accounts at a level considered adequate to provide for potential uncollectible
receivables. The level of this allowance is evaluated by management on the basis of factors that affect the collectability of the
accounts. These factors include, but are not limited to, the length of the Group’s relationship with the customer, the customer’s
payment behavior and other known market factors. The Group reviews the age and status of receivables and identifies accounts that
are to be provided with allowances on a continuous basis or those with existing allowances needing reversals.
The carrying value of loans and receivables are disclosed in Notes 7, 10, 15 and 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

Balances at beginning of year
Provisions (Note 23)
Recoveries (Note 23)
Write-offs
Balances at end of year

2016
Advances to Advances to
Trade
suppliers and officers and
Other
receivables subcontractors
employees receivables
Total
P
=67,921,840
P
=23,996,873
P
=697,313 P
= 7,262,852 P
=99,878,878
1,547,078
−
−
1,104,313
2,651,391
(500,000)
(274,984)
−
−
(774,984)
(33,621,290)
−
(12,017)
− (33,633,307)
P
=35,347,628
P
=23,721,889
P
=685,296 P
= 8,367,165 P
=68,121,978

Balances at beginning of year
Provisions (Note 23)
Recoveries (Note 23)
Write-offs
Balances at end of year

2015
Advances to Advances to
suppliers and officers and
Other
subcontractors employees
receivables
Total
=32,085,736
P
=1,165,805 P
P
=7,262,852 =
P116,744,563
−
−
−
1,778,410
(8,088,863)
−
−
(8,088,863)
−
(468,492)
− (10,555,232)
=23,996,873
P
=697,313 P
P
=7,262,852 P
=99,878,878

Estimation of retirement obligations
The determination of the obligation and retirement cost are dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in
calculating such amounts. Those assumptions include, among others, discount rates and salary increase rates. While the Group
believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences in the actual experience or significant changes in
the assumptions may materially affect the retirement obligations.
Retirement assets amounted to P
=9.9 million and P
=7.3 million as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively whereas retirement
liabilities amounted to P
=72.0 million and P
=131.1 million as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 28).
Realizability of deferred tax assets
The Group reviews the carrying amounts of deferred taxes of each entity in the Group at each reporting date and reduces deferred tax assets to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Trade
receivables
=76,230,170
P
1,778,410
−
(10,086,740)
=67,921,840
P

Allowance for doubtful accounts is determined based on specific assessment by the Group.
Deferred tax assets recognized by the Group are disclosed in Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.
8.
6.

Costs, Estimated Earnings and Billings on Uncompleted Contracts

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The details of the costs, estimated earnings and billings on uncompleted contracts follow:
This account consists of:

Cash on hand
Cash in banks
Cash equivalents

2016
P
=1,902,330
1,025,999,408
1,116,489
P
= 1,029,018,227

Total costs incurred
Add estimated earnings

2015
=4,175,736
P
1,264,988,117
1,078,227
=1,270,242,080
P

Less total billings

2015
=56,199,099,834
P
5,567,001,273
61,766,101,107
60,802,915,711
=963,185,396
P

The foregoing balances are reflected in the consolidated statements of financial position under the following accounts:

Cash in banks earns interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Cash equivalents are made for varying periods of up to three (3)
months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group and earn annual interest at the respective short-term investment rates.
Interest income from cash in banks and short-term investments amounted to P
=11.2 million, P
=2.5 million and P
=2.2 million in 2016,
2015 and 2014, respectively (see Note 24).

7.

2016
P
=57,629,587,385
6,255,395,155
63,884,982,540
64,345,635,257
(P
=460,652,717)

Costs and estimated earnings in excess of
billings on uncompleted contracts
Billings in excess of costs and estimated
earnings on uncompleted contracts

Receivables

2016

2015

P
=4,192,250,584

=5,946,503,761
P

(4,652,903,301)
(P
=460,652,717)

(4,983,318,365)
=963,185,396
P

This account consists of:
2016
Trade receivables (including retention receivables
amounting to P
=3.3 billion and P
=2.5 billion in 2016 and
2015, respectively)
Advances to suppliers and subcontractors
Consultancy fees
Receivable from sale of investment properties
Advances to officers and employees
Other receivables
Less allowance for doubtful accounts
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2015

9.

Inventories
This account consists of:

P
= 5,815,625,807
568,640,550
305,946,232
30,113,684
14,795,278
60,540,763
6,795,662,314
68,121,978
P
= 6,727,540,336

=5,301,390,692
P
738,100,885
289,688,635
25,911,485
20,191,022
64,544,500
6,439,827,219
99,878,878
=6,339,948,341
P

At cost:
Land and land development
Subdivision lots and condominium units for sale
Raw lands

2016

2015

P
=219,021,006
98,455,666
45,229,389
362,706,061

=219,256,480
P
85,875,299
44,916,103
350,047,882
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At cost and at NRV:
Construction materials
Merchandise
Spare parts and supplies

2016

2015

P
= 81,538,956
79,520,741
34,971,461
196,031,158
P
=558,737,219

=28,405,761
P
35,968,716
33,895,779
98,270,256
=448,318,138
P

2016
P
=350,047,882
3,324,291
23,269,593
(13,935,705)
P
=362,706,061

2015
=348,572,719
P
6,454,348
626,508
(5,605,693)
=350,047,882
P

A summary of the movement in real estate inventories is set out below:

Balance at beginning of year
Repossessed inventories
Construction/development costs incurred
Cost of real estate sales
Balances at end of year

Details of the Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures follow:
ARCC
Acquisition cost:
Balance, January 1
Reclassification
Additions
Write-off
Balance, December 31
Accumulated equity in net earnings
(losses):
Balance, January 1
Equity in net earnings (losses)
Balance, December 31
Subtotal
Equity in cumulative translation
adjustments

The total cost of inventories recognized in the consolidated statements of income amounted to P
=121.9 million, P
=120.3 million and
=123.4 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively (see Note 22).
P

P
=18,142,815
518,826,000
294,869,355
–
831,838,170

1,034,654,653
(1,416,119,668)
(381,465,015)
450,373,155
117,030,109
P
=567,403,264

ECW
P
=10,080,000
–
–
(10,080,000)
–

−
−
−
–
−
P
=−

2016
PWEI

PSOC

P
=257,020,000
–
–
–
257,020,000

P
=366,430,990
–
–
–
366,430,990

(12,840,943)
26,626,435
13,785,492
270,805,492
–
P
=270,805,492

Total
P
=651,673,805
518,826,000
294,869,355
(10,080,000)
1,455,289,160

(8,066,880) 1,013,746,830
73,363,105 (1,316,130,128)
65,296,225
(302,383,298)
431,727,215
1,152,905,862
−
117,030,109
P
=431,727,215 P
=1,269,935,971

2015
ARCC
Acquisition cost:
Balance, January 1
Additions
Balance, December 31

10. Other Current Assets
This account consists of:

Receivable from a customer
Current portion of receivable from EEI-RFI - net
(Notes 15, 24 and 27)
Creditable withholding taxes
Input value-added taxes (VAT)
Prepaid expenses
Miscellaneous deposits
Others
Less allowance for impairment

2016
P
=380,296,805

2015
=−
P

45,266,388
177,887,747
285,948,254
36,575,440
49,071,313
9,945,132
984,991,079
3,762,427
P
=981,228,652

117,361,532
11,850,949
452,809,544
84,309,900
50,102,484
8,150,360
724,584,769
3,762,427
=720,822,342
P

Receivable from customer represents advances to project owner that bear interest at 7.25% per annum which will be collected in 2017.
Miscellaneous deposits mainly represent the Group’s refundable rental, utilities and guarantee deposits on various machinery and
equipment items.

Accumulated equity in net earnings
(losses):
Balance, January 1
Equity in net earnings (losses)
Balance, December 31
Subtotal
Equity in cumulative translation
adjustments
Advances

ECW

=18,142,815
P
–
18,142,815

=10,080,000
P
–
10,080,000

1,708,390,828
(673,736,175)
1,034,654,653
1,052,797,468

−
−
–
10,080,000

91,773,928
518,826,000
1,663,397,396
Less allowance for impairment loss
−
=1,663,397,396
P

−
−
10,080,000
10,080,000
=−
P

PWEI
=241,000,000
P
16,020,000
257,020,000

(18,334,436)
5,493,493
(12,840,943)
244,179,057
−
−
244,179,057
−
=244,179,057
P

PSOC

Total

=−
P
366,430,990
366,430,990

=269,222,815
P
382,450,990
651,673,805

−
(8,066,880)
(8,066,880)
358,364,110

1,690,056,392
(676,309,562)
1,013,746,830
1,665,420,635

−
91,773,928
−
518,826,000
358,364,110
2,276,020,563
−
10,080,000
=358,364,110 =
P
P2,265,940,563

ARCC
EEI Limited extended advances to ARCC amounting to P
=518.8 million in 2015. These advances were converted into additional
investment in ARCC in 2016 and were presented as part of additions to the investment in ARCC. EEI Limited made additional
investment of P
=294.9 million to ARCC in 2016.
ECW
ECW is a joint venture between the Parent Company and Walter Construction Group Limited (WCG) and act as a general contractor
for the RCBC Plaza project. The Parent Company wrote off this joint venture in 2016, which was provided with full allowance in
previous years.

11. Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
The investments relate to the following investee companies:

Nature of business
Joint ventures
ECW Joint Venture, Inc. (ECW)
PetroWind Energy, Inc. (PWEI)
Associates
Al-Rushaid Construction
Company Limited (ARCC)
PetroSolar Corporation (PSOC)

Percentage of ownership
2015
2016

Construction
Renewable energy

−
20

50
20

Construction

49

49

Renewable energy

44

44

PWEI
In 2013, EPC acquired 20% stake in PWEI for P
=118.75 million. PWEI was incorporated on March 6, 2013, primarily to carry on the
general business of generating, transmitting and/or distributing power derived from renewable energy sources such as, but not limited to
wind, biomass, hydro, solar, geothermal, ocean, wave and such other renewable sources of power, and from conventional sources such as
coal, fossil fuel, natural gas, nuclear, and other viable or hybrid sources of power corporation, public electric utilities, electric cooperative
and markets. PWEI has a wind energy project in Nabas, Aklan and has started construction activities on April 29, 2013.
On November 21, 2013, PetroGreen Energy Corporation (PGEC), CapAsia ASEAN Wind Holdings Cooperatief U.A. and EEI Power
entered into a Shareholders’ Agreement (SA). The SA will govern their relationship as the shareholders of PWEI as well as
containing their respective rights and obligations in relation to PWEI. Further, the SA contains provisions regarding voting
requirements for relevant activities that require unanimous consent of all the parties. PGEC, CapAsia and EEI Power agree that their
equity ownership ratio in PWEI is at 40%, 40% and 20%, respectively.
Although the Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) and the SA were executed on November 21, 2013, these did not result to PGEC’s loss
of control over PWEI in 2013. The loss of control did not happen until the Closing Date. On February 14, 2014, the Closing Date, the
payment has been received from sale of the shares as executed in the Deed of Assignment covering the transfer of shares from PGEC
to CapAsia and all the conditions precedent have been satisfactory completed. Hence, the transaction made PWEI a joint venture
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2015

between PGEC, CapAsia and EEI Power by virtue of the SA signed among the three parties governing the manner of managing
PWEI. PGEC lost control over PWEI while CapAsia was given full voting and economic rights as a 40% shareholder.
PSOC
In 2015, the Company purchased 3.7 million shares from PSOC amounting to =
P366.4 million which resulted to 44% ownership.
PSOC was incorporated on June 17, 2015 primarily to carry out the general business of generating, transmitting, and/or distributing
power derived from renewable energy resources. It has a 50 megawatt solar farm in Tarlac City.
Below are the summarized financial information relating to the Group’s significant associates:

Net assets of an associate
Proportionate ownership in the associate
Share in net identifiable assets
Share in deposits for future stocks
subscription
Transaction costs
Advances
Carrying value of investment
Less allowance for impairment loss

December 31, 2016
Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Total assets

ARCC
P
=4,966,534,096
2,448,152,336
P
=7,414,686,432

PWEI
P
=1,042,850,142
4,046,771,484
P
=5,089,621,626

PSOC
P
=455,156,856
2,959,109,374
P
=3,414,266,230

Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

P
=5,371,999,778
884,720,809
P
=6,256,720,587

P
=999,876,514
2,735,717,651
P
=3,735,594,165

P
=327,740,291
2,108,125,427
P
=2,435,865,718

Revenue
Cost
Gross margin
Selling and administrative, and other expenses
Pre-tax income (loss)
Proportionate ownership in the associate
Income tax
Equity in net earnings (losses)

P
=6,837,351,150
(9,703,030,518)
(2,865,679,368)
(650,445,110)
(3,516,124,478)

P
=769,941,511
(568,447,331)
201,494,180
(68,362,003)
133,132,177

P
=558,522,494
(199,119,971)
359,402,523
(182,667,782)
176,734,741

49%
(1,722,900,994)
306,781,326
(P
=1,416,119,668)

20%
26,626,435
−
P
=26,626,435

44%
77,763,286
(4,400,181)
P
=73,363,105

December 31, 2015
Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Total assets
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

ARCC
=8,268,216,000
P
2,179,209,587
=10,447,425,587
P
=6,094,745,824
P
2,016,819,771
=8,111,565,595
P

Revenue
Cost
Gross margin
Selling and administrative, and other expenses
Pre-tax income (loss)

P12,352,910,118
=
(13,700,845,596)
(1,347,935,478)
(370,779,254)
(1,718,714,732)

P312,912,033
=
(159,935,743)
152,976,290
(125,508,825)
27,467,465

=5,589,830
P
−
5,589,830
(23,923,649)
(18,333,819)

49%
(842,170,219)
168,434,044
(P
=673,736,175)

20%
5,493,493
−
=5,493,493
P

44%
(8,066,880)
−
(P
=8,066,880)

Proportionate ownership in the associate
Income tax
Equity in net earnings (losses)

PWEI
P477,157,841
=
4,276,656,045
=4,753,813,886
P
=957,432,597
P
2,760,586,005
=3,718,018,602
P

PSOC
=1,263,124,662
P
2,889,095,008
=4,152,219,670
P
=1,526,668,501
P
2,313,884,989
=3,840,553,490
P

The Group’s share in the net income of ARCC is subject to 20% Saudi Arabian income taxes.
The reconciliation of the net assets of the associates to the carrying amounts of the investments recognized in the consolidated
financial statements follows:
2016
Net assets of an associate
Proportionate ownership in the associate
Share in net identifiable assets
Transaction costs
Carrying value of investment
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ARCC
P
=1,157,965,845
49%
567,403,264
–
P
=567,403,264

PWEI
P
=1,354,027,461
20%
270,805,492
–
P
=270,805,492

PSOC
P
=978,400,512
44%
430,496,225
1,230,990
P
=431,727,215

ARCC
= 2,335,859,992
P
49%
1,144,571,396

ECW
=23,584,514
P
50%
11,792,257

PWEI
=1,035,795,284
P
20%
207,159,057

PSOC
=311,666,180
P
44%
137,133,119

–
–
518,826,000
1,663,397,396
−
=1,663,397,396
P

–
–
(1,712,257)
10,080,000
10,080,000
=−
P

37,020,000
–
–
244,179,057
−
=244,179,057
P

220,000,000
1,230,991
–
358,364,110
−
=358,364,110
P

12. AFS Financial Assets
This account consists of:
2016
P
=17,501,128
350,529,756
P
=368,030,884

Quoted shares - at fair value
Unquoted shares - at cost

2015
P19,926,468
=
350,529,756
=370,456,224
P

The rollforward analyses of AFS financial assets for the years ended December 31 follows:
2016
P
=370,456,224
−
−
−
(2,425,340)
P
=368,030,884

At January 1
Additions
Reclassification
Reduction
Fair value
At December 31

2015
=149,688,527
P
167,505,224
70,155,000
(14,000,000)
(2,892,527)
=370,456,224
P

In 2015, the Group purchased 10% equity interest in PetroGreen Energy Corporation (PGEC) for P
=237.3 million and acquired
additional shares of YGC Corporate Services, Inc. for P
=0.4 million.
In 2015, the Group wrote off its investment in Brightnote Asset Corporation and its related subscription payable amounting to
=14.0 million because the investee issued a certificate of decrease in capital stock with the same amount.
P
Presented below are the movements in net unrealized gains on AFS financial assets for the years ended December 31:

At January 1
Fair value changes
At December 31

2016
P
=6,479,392
(2,425,340)
P
=4,054,052

2015
P9,371,919
=
(2,892,527)
=6,479,392
P

2014
=7,814,263
P
1,557,656
=9,371,919
P

The unquoted AFS financial assets consist of shares of the following companies:
PetroGreen Energy Corporation
Hermosa Ecozone Development Corp
Brightnote Assets Corporation
YGC Corporate Services, Inc.
Tower Club
Royale North Woods
Architectural Center Club, Inc.
Philippine Contractors Association
Philippine Exporters Trading Corp.
Pilipino Telephone Company
At December 31

2016
P
=237,279,889
100,000,000
11,000,000
1,580,336
500,000
121,856
32,000
10,000
5,000
675
P
=350,529,756

2015
=237,279,889
P
100,000,000
11,000,000
1,580,336
500,000
121,856
32,000
10,000
5,000
675
=350,529,756
P

Fair value for these unquoted financial assets cannot be determined reliably because these equity instruments represent ordinary and
preferred shares in private companies that are not quoted on any market and do not have any comparable industry peer that is listed.
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13. Property and Equipment

14. Investment Properties
The rollforward analyses of this account follow:

The rollforward analyses of this account follow:

2016
Residential Houses,
Condominium Units
and Parking Slots
Land

2016
Land,
Buildings and
Improvements
Cost
At beginning of year
Additions
Retirements/disposals
Reclassifications
Transfers
At end of year
Accumulated depreciation and
amortization
At beginning of year
Depreciation and amortization
Retirements/disposals
Reclassifications
At end of year
Net book value

Machinery,
Tools and
Construction
Equipment

Transportation
and Service
Equipment

Furniture,
Fixtures,
and Office
Equipment

Construction
In Progress

Total

P
= 985,553,350
4,199,234
−
1,096,801
−
990,849,385

P
= 4,160,010,618
399,721,070
(11,489,918)
11,621,423
20,631,262
4,580,494,455

P
= 689,431,580
269,045,780
(8,186,871)
(10,160,714)
−
940,129,775

P
= 659,981,463
58,803,523
(36,834,104)
(1,460,709)
57,957
680,548,130

P
= 6,960,777
3,201,625
−
(1,096,801)
−
9,065,601

P
= 6,501,937,788
734,971,232
(56,510,893)
−
20,689,219
7,201,087,346

119,753,362
29,718,178
−
−
149,471,540
P
= 841,377,845

1,321,087,324
408,913,063
(10,327,117)
2,325,888
1,721,999,158
P
= 2,858,495,297

219,394,622
99,918,394
(6,639,896)
(865,179)
311,807,941
P
= 628,321,834

484,564,977
89,658,341
(36,503,378)
(1,460,709)
536,259,231
P
= 144,288,899

−
−
−
−
−
P
= 9,065,601

2,144,800,285
628,207,976
(53,470,391)
−
2,719,537,870
P
= 4,481,549,476

P
= 199,061,054
(7,430,969)
191,630,085

P
=55,752,311
(27,883,636)
27,868,675

P
=254,813,365
(35,314,605)
219,498,760

Accumulated depreciation
Balances at beginning of year
Depreciation (Note 23)
Disposals
Balance at end of year
Net book value

−
−
−
−
P
= 191,630,085

23,584,981
1,336,639
(8,903,242)
16,018,378
P
=11,850,297

23,584,981
1,336,639
(8,903,242)
16,018,378
P
=203,480,382

2015
Land,
Buildings and
Improvements
Cost
At beginning of year
Additions
Retirements/disposals
Reclassifications
Transfers
At end of year
Accumulated depreciation and
amortization
At beginning of year
Depreciation and amortization
Retirements/disposals
At end of year
Net book value

Machinery,
Tools and
Construction
Equipment

Transportation
and Service
Equipment

Furniture,
Fixtures,
and Office
Equipment

Land

Construction
In Progress

Total

=976,025,556
P
−
(2,285,827)
9,774,454
2,039,167
985,553,350

=3,372,866,686
P
728,466,343
(32,542,911)
−
91,220,500
4,160,010,618

=397,588,477
P
305,439,472
(13,596,369)
−
−
689,431,580

=606,146,955
P
98,091,836
(48,508,411)
104,986
4,146,097
659,981,463

=36,864,277
P
4,777,850
−
(9,879,440)
(24,801,910)
6,960,777

=5,389,491,951
P
1,136,775,501
(96,933,518)
−
72,603,854
6,501,937,788

88,295,583
31,457,779
−
119,753,362
=865,799,988
P

1,043,539,423
309,763,796
(32,215,895)
1,321,087,324
=2,838,923,294
P

166,040,635
64,884,280
(11,530,293)
219,394,622
=470,036,958
P

430,475,541
101,810,609
(47,721,173)
484,564,977
=175,416,486
P

−
−
−
−
=6,960,777
P

1,728,351,182
507,916,464
(91,467,361)
2,144,800,285
=4,357,137,503
P

Construction in progress pertains to cost of construction of improvements on buildings and leasehold not yet completed.
The distribution of the depreciation and amortization expense of the Group’s property and equipment follows:
Cost of construction contracts (Note 20)
Cost of services (Note 21)
Selling and administrative expenses (Note 23)
Capitalized as part of cost of inventories

2016
P
=483,036,014
51,639,582
93,367,317
165,063
P
=628,207,976

2015
=373,765,749
P
43,663,201
90,487,514
−
=507,916,464
P

2014
=278,963,346
P
42,760,005
73,332,597
−
=395,055,948
P

Total

Cost
Balances at beginning of year
Disposals
Balances at end of year

2015
Residential Houses,
Condominium Units
and Parking Slots

Total

Cost
Balances at beginning of year
Disposals
Balances at end of year

=205,668,223
P
(6,607,169)
199,061,054

P71,807,111
=
(16,054,800)
55,752,311

=277,475,334
P
(22,661,969)
254,813,365

Accumulated depreciation
Balances at beginning of year
Depreciation (Note 23)
Disposals
Balance at end of year
Net book value

−
−
−
−
=199,061,054
P

22,494,343
3,008,388
(1,917,750)
23,584,981
=32,167,330
P

22,494,343
3,008,388
(1,917,750)
23,584,981
=231,228,384
P

Land classified as investment properties include parcels of land located in Batangas, Benguet, Cavite, Nueva Ecija, Bulacan and
memorial lots in Las Piñas with carrying values of P
=180.1 million, P
=6.3 million, P
=0.5 million, P
=0.2 million, P
=2 thousand and P
=4.5
million, respectively, as of December 31, 2016. Carrying values of parcels of land located in Batangas, Benguet, Cavite, Nueva Ecija,
Bulacan and memorial lots in Las Piñas amounted to P
=180.1 million, P
=9.5 million, P
=0.5 million, P
=0.2 million, P
=2 thousand and P
=8.7
million, respectively, as of December 31, 2015.
Parcels of land in Batangas and Benguet has a fair value amounting to P
=292.5 million and P
=7.4 million, respectively as of December
5, 2016 determined based on valuation performed by an independent appraiser whose report was dated December 12, 2016.
Management believes that there is no significant change in the fair value of the investment property from December 5, 2016 to
December 31, 2016 because there were no significant improvements made to the said investment property since the last appraisal and
no impairment indicators existed as of December 31, 2016.
The fair values of the aforementioned investment property were determined using the market approach which is a valuation technique
that uses prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets and adjusted
to reflect differences on size, location, frontage/visability, view and utilization (Level 3 - Significant unobservable inputs).
The aggregate carrying values of the condominium units located in Taguig, Manila and Makati amounted to P
=10.8 million and P
=27.7
million as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Parking slots located in Taguig and Pasig have carrying values amounting to
=1.0 million and P
P
=4.6 million as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the fair values of the condominium units and the parking slots amounted to P
=18.7 million
and P
=58.1 million, respectively, based on market transactions involving identical or comparable assets and adjusted to reflect any
differences in the characteristics of the properties (Level 3 - Significant unobservable inputs).
Rental income derived from the investment properties amounted to P
=4.5 million, P
=1.7 million, P
=2.6 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. Direct operating expenses incurred in relation to these investment properties amounted to P
=0.6 million, P
=0.3 million and
=0.2 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
P
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Accrued expenses consist of:
15. Other Noncurrent Assets
Other noncurrent assets consist of:

Receivable from EEI-RFI - net of current portion (Note 10)
Receivable from a customer (Note 10)
Software cost
Others

2016
P
=178,000,000
−
2,073,257
37,895,066
P
=217,968,323

2015
=156,000,000
P
162,326,173
6,141,131
5,144,641
=329,611,945
P

The Parent Company sold a parcel of land to EEI RFI, a trustee of the Parent Company’s employee retirement fund in previous years.
Both parties agreed the selling price be repaid in installments and bear annual interest rate of 5%. In 2016, the Parent Company and
the Fund agreed to extend the term of the payment until April 30, 2021 (see Note 27).
The rollforward analyses of the Group’s software costs in 2016 and 2015 follow:

2015
=11,240,593
P
4,270,328
92,856,891
=108,367,812
P

Subscription payable represents unpaid subscriptions on AFS financial asset.
Other accrued expenses consist of audit and legal fees, outside services utilities and accrual of other expenses that are expected to be
settled within 1 year.

18. Long-term Debt
This account consists of:

2016
Cost
Balance at beginning of year
Additions
Balance at end of year
Accumulated amortization
Balance at beginning of year
Amortization (Note 23)
Balance at end of year
Net book value

2016
P
=9,307,246
3,708,767
104,288,925
P
=117,304,938

Accrued interest
Accrued salaries and wages
Other accrued expenses

2015

P
= 36,008,313
−
36,008,313

=33,545,232
P
2,463,081
36,008,313

29,867,182
4,067,874
33,935,056
P
=2,073,257

20,062,435
9,804,747
29,867,182
=6,141,131
P

Fixed-rate corporate promissory notes
Fixed-rate term loan
Less current portion

2016
P
=1,089,285,715
410,714,285
1,500,000,000
285,714,286
P
=1,214,285,714

2015
=1,303,571,429
P
482,142,857
1,785,714,286
285,714,286
=1,500,000,000
P

Fixed-rate corporate promissory notes
In 2014, the Parent Company received P
=500.0 million proceeds from the issuance of unsecured fixed-rate corporate promissory notes
to a local bank that bear annual interest of 5.2%. Subsequently, the bank reduced the interest rate to 4.8% effective starting May 26,
2015 until maturity. The promissory notes mature within seven (7) years from the date of issuance.

As of December 31, 2016, the remaining amortization period of the software is 1 year.
On June 15, 2015, the Parent Company received P
=1,000.0 million proceeds from the issuance of an unsecured fixed-rate corporate promissory
note to a local bank that bears annual interest of 4.8%. The promissory note matures within seven (7) years from the date of issuance.
16. Bank Loans

The proceeds from the promissory notes were used for general corporate and project financing requirements.

The Group availed of several unsecured short-term bank loans with a number of local banks. These loans will mature in 2017 with
annual interest rates ranging from 2.50% - 2.65% and 2.50% - 2.60% in 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Interest expense incurred on these loans amounted to P
=91.9 million, P
=69.7 million and P
=74.1 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014,
respectively.

17. Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities

Fixed-rate term loan
On August 28, 2015, EEI Power availed a P
=500.0 million long-term loan from a local bank that bears an annual interest of 4.8%. The
loan is payable in equal quarterly installments and will mature on August 27, 2022.
Interest expense incurred on these corporate notes amounted to P
=23.0 million, P
=26.6 million and P
=34.4 million in 2016, 2015 and
2014, respectively.

This account consists of:

Accounts payable
Deferred output taxes
Retention payable
Accrued expenses
Output tax payable
Business tax payable
Advances from joint venture partners
Withholding taxes
SSS and other contributions
Subscription payable
Dividends payable
Others

Interest expense incurred on these corporate notes amounted to P
=47.9 million, P
=40.1 million and P
=15.1 million in 2016, 2015 and
2014, respectively.

2016
P
= 3,371,586,426
590,644,128
588,450,354
117,304,938
133,291,352
90,341,291
32,381,854
27,763,823
21,601,155
14,357,213
5,999,995
5,899,868
P
= 4,999,622,397

2015
=3,566,770,762
P
545,789,901
624,088,462
108,367,812
247,720,752
60,675,169
32,381,854
49,077,772
19,012,705
14,357,213
5,999,995
2,868,178
=5,277,110,575
P

Movements in the account follow:

Balance at beginning of year
Availments
Payments
Balance at end of year
Less current portion

2015
2016
Term Loan
Promissory Note
Term Loan Promissory Note
=446,428,570
P
=517,912,201
P
P
=1,303,571,429 P
=482,142,857
1,000,000,000
500,000,000
−
−
(142,857,141)
(535,769,344)
(214,285,714)
(71,428,572)
1,303,571,429
482,142,857
1,089,285,715
410,714,285
214,285,715
71,428,571
214,285,715
71,428,571
=1,089,285,714
P
=410,714,286
P
P
=875,000,000 P
=339,285,714

The aforementioned loans require the Group to maintain certain financial ratios. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Group was
in compliance with the loan covenants.

19. Stock Option Plan
The Parent Company’s stock option plan, as amended (Amended Plan), had set aside 35 million common shares for stock options
available to regular employees, officers and directors of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries.

84

EEI CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2016

EEI CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2016

85

Under the Amended Plan, the option or subscription price must be equal to the book value of the Parent Company’s common stock but
not less than 80% of the average market price quoted in PSE for five trading days immediately preceding the grant, but in no case less
than the par value. The option or subscription price should be paid over a period of five years in 120 equal semi-monthly installments.
Shares acquired under the Amended Plan are subject to a holding period of one year.

23. Selling and Administrative Expenses
This account consists of:

A summary of the plan availments is shown below.
Number of
Shares
19,262,500
15,737,500
35,000,000
19,365,815
10,886,188
30,252,003
4,747,997

Shares allocated under the Original Stock Option Plan
Shares allocated under the Amended Stock Option Plan
Total shares allocated
Shares subscribed under the Original Stock Option Plan
Shares subscribed under the Amended Stock Option Plan
Total shares subscribed
Shares allocated at end of year

The Parent Company opted to avail the exemption in PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, from
applying PFRS 2 upon adoption on January 1, 2005 as it allows non-adoption of PFRS 2 for equity instruments that were granted on
or before November 7, 2002. Since 2000, there were no shares under the stock option plan that were granted, forfeited, exercised and
expired.
No benefit expense is recognized relative to the shares issued under the stock option plan. When options are exercised, these are
treated as capital stock issuances. The stock option plan is exempt from PFRS 2.

Personnel expenses
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 13, 14 and 15)
Rent (Note 27)
Professional fees
Travel and transportation
Training
Taxes and licenses
Outside services
Utilities
Food, meals and others
Repairs and maintenance
Research and development
Donations
Supplies
Entertainment, amusement and recreation
Insurance
Management fee
Advertising
Net provision (recovery) of inventory obsolescence
Premium on bonds
Net provision (recovery) of doubtful accounts (Note 7)
Others

2016
P
=510,681,023
98,771,830
58,015,357
57,034,444
53,401,534
50,544,647
39,213,249
37,031,746
30,732,415
20,057,224
18,992,430
13,366,431
9,298,573
7,820,847
7,137,876
6,870,429
5,328,428
4,677,690
2,118,396
2,007,923
1,876,407
51,440,778
P
=1,086,419,677

2015
=380,275,937
P
103,300,649
54,147,376
47,324,027
52,248,195
−
44,923,211
28,499,168
30,688,463
22,326,091
29,851,721
−
7,829,312
6,519,705
4,682,446
8,218,347
2,142,857
2,248,416
−
1,385,919
(6,310,453)
36,336,346
=856,637,733
P

2014
=397,204,411
P
86,184,977
54,211,286
42,345,621
47,312,730
−
39,416,597
29,231,119
31,944,381
19,599,267
9,723,866
−
5,055,045
9,046,596
3,613,660
7,205,726
2,142,857
7,019,657
(460,452)
1,110,111
(15,343,880)
12,212,375
=788,775,950
P

20. Costs of Construction Contracts
Others include stock listing fees, freight, membership fees and dues, employee welfare and bank charges and miscellaneous expenses.
This account consists of:

Personnel expenses
Equipment costs and others
Materials
Depreciation and amortization (Note 13)

2016
P
= 5,119,261,703
3,960,863,198
2,563,588,392
483,036,014
P
=12,126,749,307

2015
=5,174,228,371
P
5,337,771,601
4,929,459,011
373,765,749
=15,815,224,732
P

2014
=4,664,108,039
P
4,852,094,411
4,466,633,143
278,963,346
=14,261,798,939
P

21. Costs of Services

24. Interest Income
This account consists of:

Trade receivable and receivable from a customer
(Note 10)
Receivable from EEI-RFI (Notes 10 and 15)
Cash in banks and short-term investments (Note 6)
Receivable from related parties (Note 27)

This account consists of:

Personnel expenses
Materials
Depreciation and amortization (Note 13)
Others

2016
P
=453,721,530
153,330,165
51,639,582
31,427,612
P
=690,118,889

2015
=433,671,097
P
261,413,533
43,663,201
54,288,876
=793,036,707
P

2014
=446,560,794
P
381,589,383
42,760,005
66,026,376
=936,936,558
P

22. Costs of Merchandise Sales
This account consists of:

Inventories (Note 9)
Personnel expenses
Others

2016
P
=121,927,390
4,291,512
2,504,703
P
=128,723,605

2015
=120,342,656
P
5,140,442
3,293,241
=128,776,339
P

2014
=123,435,180
P
8,304,361
5,183,804
=136,923,345
P

2016

2015

2014

P
= 36,430,339
11,928,075
11,234,521
1,736,199
P
= 61,329,134

P5,826,784
=
16,269,348
2,514,982
4,139,474
=28,750,588
P

P8,680,227
=
17,652,530
2,153,720
6,595,697
=35,082,174
P

2016
P
= 14,791,234

2015
=5,701,647
P

2014
=7,406,912
P

5,390,206
−
5,141,355
28,522,851
1,378,474
6,900,718
−
−
−
17,759,312
=70,794,563
P

−
–
6,030,018
–
1,987,794
–
6,000,000
115,786
−
20,671,692
=42,212,202
P

25. Other Income - Net
This account consists of:

Tax refund/discount
Gain (loss) on disposal of:
Investment properties (Note 14)
Property and equipment (Note 13)
Rent income (Note 14)
Income from extinguishment of payables
Gain on sale of scrap
Income from defaults
Reversal of provision for losses
Recoveries from sale of obsolete inventory
Loss on liquidation of subsidiaries
Others

11,707,531
(291,180)
7,929,240
5,459,033
1,780,131
−
−
−
(26,174,418)
(5,938,690)
P
=9,262,881

In 2016, the Group wrote-off dormant and closed subsidiaries and recognized a loss of P
=26.2 million. The loss mainly pertains to the
reclassification of cumulative translation adjustment relating to EEI Corporation (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. previously taken up in other
comprehensive income to profit or loss.
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The movements of NOLCO and MCIT are summarized as follow:
26. Income Taxes
NOLCO
The provision for income tax consists of:
2016
P
=204,103,840
21,473,449
P
=225,577,289

Current
Deferred

2015
=435,924,643
P
(2,327,202)
=433,597,441
P

2014
=384,587,214
P
15,470,477
=400,057,691
P

2016

2015

P
=20,436,593
5,135
32,427,737
−
7,519,684
3,410,917
3,235,014
67,035,080

=29,963,663
P
12,070,546
25,614,038
81,114
370,467
1,445,523
4,631,438
74,176,789

26,359,439
1,413,032
238,526
−
28,010,997

12,129,835
1,518,718
1,483
29,221
13,679,257

44,975,406
P
=83,999,489

49,194,261
=109,691,793
P

Year
Incurred
2016
2015
2014
2013

The components of the Group’s deferred tax assets and liabilities follow:
Deferred income tax items recognized in profit or loss:
Deferred income tax assets:
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Unrealized foreign exchange losses
Unamortized past service cost
Retirement liability
NOLCO
MCIT
Others
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Retirement assets
Capitalized borrowing cost
Unrealized foreign exchange gains
Accrued rent
Deferred income tax item recognized in other comprehensive income:
Deferred income tax asset on remeasurement loss on defined benefit plans
Deferred tax assets - net
Reconciliation of net deferred tax assets follows:
Balance at beginning of year
Tax income (expense) recognized in:
Profit and loss
Other comprehensive income
Balance at end of year

P
=109,691,793

=93,799,494
P

(21,473,449)
(4,218,855)
P
=83,999,489

2,327,202
13,565,097
=109,691,793
P

Applied
=−
P
−
2,100,008
50,508
=2,150,516
P

Amount
=2,374,219
P
724,398
644,465
79,522
=3,822,604
P

Applied
=−
P
−
329,655
42,803
=372,458
P

Expired
=−
P
−
−
6,550
=6,550
P

Balance
=23,862,474
P
66,795
1,280,587
−
=25,209,856
P

Year of
Expiration
2019
2018
2017
2016

MCIT
Year
Incurred
2016
2015
2014
2013

Expired
=−
P
−
−
36,719
=36,719
P

Year of
Expiration
2019
2018
2017
2016

Balance
=2,374,219
P
724,398
314,810
−
=3,413,427
P

The reconciliation between the statutory and effective income tax rates follows:
2016
30.0%

Statutory income tax rate
Add (deduct) reconciling items:
Income subjected to final taxes at lower rates
Change in unrecognized deferred taxes
Equity in net earnings of associates
and joint ventures
Others
Effective income tax rate

0.5
−
(63.5)
(3.3)
(36.3%)

2015
30.0%

2014
30.0%

(0.2)
(1.2)

(0.1)
(1.1)

31.9
7.6
68.1%

(9.6)
11.1
30.3%

27. Related Party Transactions

The Group did not recognize deferred tax liabilities on undistributed earnings and cumulative translation adjustments of foreign
subsidiaries in 2016 and 2015 since the Group determined that the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled
by the Group and management does not expect the reversal of the temporary differences in the foreseeable future. The undistributed
earnings of the Group’s foreign subsidiaries amounted to P
=448.0 million and P
=1.9 billion as at December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively.

The outstanding balances and transactions with related parties in 2016 and 2015 consist of the following:

The Group did not recognize any deferred tax asset in relation to unexpired share options as this has negative intrinsic value.

Parent company Due from related parties
Rendering janitorial services
Due to related parties
Purchase of management
services
Due to related parties
Associate
Entities under the
common control Due from related parties
Rendering janitorial services
Sale of supplies
Interest income on cash advances
Due to related parties
Cash and cash equivalents
Interest income
Trade receivables
Revenue from construction
contracts

The Group did not recognize deferred tax assets on the following future deductible differences as management assessed that it is not
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.
2016
P
= 144,244
101,427
2,510
159,043

NOLCO
Allowance for doubtful accounts
MCIT
Allowance for probable losses

2015
=169,550
P
101,427
2,862
−

As at December 31, 2016, the Group’s NOLCO and MCIT that can be claimed as deduction from future taxable income follows:
Year Incurred
2016
2015
2014
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Amount
=23,862,474
P
66,795
3,380,595
57,058
=27,366,922
P
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NOLCO
=23,862,474
P
66,795
1,280,587
=25,209,856
P

MCIT
=2,374,219
P
724,398
314,810
=3,413,427
P

Year of Expiration
2019
2018
2017

2016
Related party

Other affiliates

Transaction

Trade receivables
Interest income on receivables
Receivable from EEI-RFI
(Notes 10 and 15)
Lease of property
Interest earned

Amount /
Volume

Outstanding
Balance

Terms

P
=−
11,122,850
−

P
=6,880,788 Non-interest bearing
−
−
(23,966,567) Non-interest bearing

(3,024,857)
−

−
−
(123,234,530) Non-interest bearing

−
329,456,748
354,720
1,736,199
−
−
5,085,213
−

72,534,297 Non-interest bearing
−
−
−
−
−
−
(17,336,988) Non-interest bearing
967,481,874
−
−
−
69,576,963 Non-interest bearing

595,553,920

−

−
10,160,630

303,770,291
−

−
(52,093,125)
11,928,075

223,266,388
−
−

−
Interest bearing,
5% per annum
−
Interest bearing,
5% per annum
Non-interest bearing
−

Conditions
Unsecured,
no impairment
−
Unsecured
−
Unsecured
Unsecured,
no impairment
−
−
−
−
−
−
Unsecured
−
Unsecured
−
Unsecured
Unsecured
−
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In 2013, the receivable from the EEI-RFI amounting to P
=390.0 million was restructured and reclassified to other noncurrent
assets with fixed 5% interest rate per annum. In 2016, the Parent Company and the Fund agreed to extend the term of the
payment until April 30, 2021.

2015
Company

Transaction

Parent

Due from related parties
Rendering janitorial services
Due to related parties
Purchase of management services

Associate

Entities under the
common control

Other affiliates

Due from related parties
Rendering janitorial services
Due to related parties

Amount / Volume
=−
P
11,584,278
−
(2,142,857)
−
141,689
−

Outstanding
Balance

Terms

=3,825,160
P
−
(33,413,051)
−

Non-interest bearing
–
Non-interest bearing
–

988,593
−
(370,376)

Non-interest bearing
−
Non-interest bearing
Non-interest bearing
–
–
−
Non-interest bearing
–
–
–
Interest bearing; 0.20% 0.25% per annum
–
Non-interest bearing
−
Interest bearing,
5%
per annum
Non-interest bearing
–

Due from related parties
Rendering janitorial services
Sale of supplies
Interest income on cash advances
Due to related parties
Rendering janitorial services
Lease of properties
Interest expense

−
232,292,247
288,635
4,139,474
−
175,324,181
(281,259)
(4,913)

69,738,377
−
−
−
(122,799,900)
−
−
−

Cash and cash equivalents
Interest income
Trade receivables
Revenue from construction contracts
Receivable from EEI-RFI
(Notes 10 and 15)
Lease of property
Interest income

−
2,464,147
−
593,343,047

949,805,740
−
441,728,412
−

−
(49,612,500)
16,269,348

273,361,532
−
−

Conditions
Unsecured,
no impairment
–
Unsecured
–
Unsecured,
no impairment
−
Unsecured
Unsecured,
no impairment
–
–
−
Unsecured
–
–
–
Unsecured,
no
impairment
–
Unsecured
−
Secured,
no impairment
Unsecured
–

a.

In 2016, the Parent Company was engaged by Malayan Colleges Mindanao for the bored piling works located in Talomo, Ma-a,
Davao City. Contract price amounted to P
=171.8 million. The project was completed on December 16, 2016.

b.

In 2015, the Parent Company was contracted by Enrique T. Yuchengco, Inc. for the general con struction of ETY Building in
Binondo, Manila for P
=663.4 million. Outstanding receivables as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 amounted to nil and P
=23.07
million, respectively. The construction is still on-going as of December 31, 2016.

h.

As of December 31, the Group’s retirement plan assets include investments in equity securities of the following entities:
2016
P
=24,930,703
212,486
39,609
P
=25,182,798

Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation
House of Investments, Inc.
EEI Corporation

2015
=24,522,003
P
220,400
39,695
=24,782,098
P

Gain arising from investments in the shares of stocks of the aforementioned companies amounted to P
=2.9 million, P
=2.6 million
and P
=2.8 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
i.

The remuneration of members of key management personnel are as follows:

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits

2016
P
=150,742,506
44,510,689
P
=195,253,195

2015
=142,422,517
P
37,915,198
=180,337,715
P

2014
=126,330,450
P
3,561,397
=129,891,847
P

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
Outstanding balances at year-end are unsecured, interest-free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided
or received for any related party receivables or payables. These mainly consist of advances and reimbursement of expenses. The
Group has not recognized any impairment on amounts due from affiliated companies for the years ended December 31, 2016 and
2015. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through a review of the financial position of the related party and the market
in which the related party operates.

28. Retirement Benefits
The Group has a funded, noncontributory plan covering substantially all of its employees. The retirement funds are being
administered and managed through EEI Corporation and Subsidiaries Retirement fund, with Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation
(RCBC) as Trustee. The Group, however, reserves the right to discontinue, suspend or change the rates and amounts of its
contributions at any time on account of business necessity or adverse economic conditions. The latest actuarial valuation was made
last December 31, 2016.

c.

In 2014, the Parent Company was engaged by Malayan Colleges Laguna, Inc. for the construction of its three-storey building in
Cabuyao, Laguna. Contract price amounted to P
=291.4 million. The construction was completed on August 25, 2015.
Outstanding receivables amounted to nil and P
=23.8 million as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

d.

In 2014, the Parent Company was engaged by Malayan Insurance Company, Inc. for the rectification works of Malayan Plaza
amounting to P
=13.4 million. EEI completed the project on November 8, 2014.

Under the existing regulatory framework, Republic Act 7641 requires a provision for retirement pay to qualified private sectors employee
in the absence of any retirement plan in the entity, provided however that the employee retirement benefits under any collective
bargaining and other agreements shall not be less than those provided under law. The Law does not require minimum funding of plan.

e.

In 2013, the Parent Company was contracted by PWEI for the construction of 18 units WTG foundations, roadways and
temporary landing pad intended for the 36MW Nabas Wind Power Project (NWPP) in Nabas, Aklan for P
=1,100.0 million. The
project was completed in April 30, 2015. The outstanding receivables amounted to P
=303.8 million and P
=272.3 million as of
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The following table summarizes the components of pension expense recognized in the Group’s consolidated statements of income and
the amounts recognized in the Group’s consolidated statements of financial position for the plan:

f.

In 2014, the Parent Company issued a Parent Company Guarantee to Saudi Aramco Mobil Refinery Company Limited
(SAMREF) and Sadara Chemical Company to guarantee the full and timely performance by Al Rushaid Construction Co., Ltd.
(ARCC) of all its obligations under the contract entered between ARCC and the said parties. This is in effect up to 2015.

The components of pension expense follow:

g.

In 2006, the Parent Company sold parcels of land to EEI-RFI, a trustee of the Parent Company employees retirement fund (the
Fund). The Fund is managed by RCBC Trust and Investment Division. The parcels of land sold are located in Manggahan,
Quezon City and Bauan, Batangas (see Notes 10 and 14). Interest income recognized from the receivables from
EEI-RFI is disclosed in Note 24. The receivables bear interest of 5% per annum in 2016, 2015 and 2014.
Starting January 2007, the Parent Company and EEI-RFI entered into operating lease agreements for the said land and
improvements. The terms are for one year and renewable at the option of the Parent Company provided that for each and every
renewal, the monthly rentals shall be increased upon mutual agreement of both parties. Rental expense for the property located in
Manggahan, Quezon City amounted to P
=52.1 million and P
=49.6 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 23).
On December 12, 2012, the Parent Company acquired certain parcels of land including land improvements located in Bauan,
Batangas from EEI-RFI, amounting to P
=581.8 million, inclusive of 12% VAT. The operating lease agreement of the said
properties between the Parent Company and EEI-RFI was terminated on the same date.
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Current service cost
Net interest cost
Pension expense

2016
P
= 84,090,854
6,356,293
P
= 90,447,147

2015
=78,911,229
P
4,371,399
=83,282,628
P

2016
P
= 903,427,885
84,090,854
46,304,011
(101,672,412)

2015
=845,753,984
P
78,911,229
39,653,668
(54,720,712)

16,310,920
(23,458,730)
P
= 925,002,528

21,593,088
(27,763,372)
=903,427,885
P

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations follow:

Balance at beginning of year
Current service cost
Interest cost
Benefits paid
Remeasurement losses (gains) arising from:
Experience adjustments
Changes in financial assumptions
Balance at end of year
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Movements in the present value of the plan assets follow:
Balance at beginning of year
Interest income included in net interest cost
Actual return excluding amount included in net interest cost
Contributions
Benefits paid
Balance at end of year

Principal actuarial assumptions used to determine defined benefit obligations follow:
2016
P
=779,609,420
39,947,718
6,915,039
138,149,540
(101,672,412)
P
=862,949,305

2015
=753,019,571
P
35,282,269
(51,387,273)
96,418,773
(53,723,920)
=779,609,420
P

Actual return on plan assets amounted to P
=46.9 million and (P
=16.1 million) in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Discount rate
Beginning of year
End of year
Salary increases
Beginning of year
End of year

2015
P903,427,885
=
(779,609,420)
=123,818,465
P

The amounts reflected in the consolidated statements of financial position are as follows:
Retirement assets
Retirement liabilities

2016
P
=9,939,515
(71,992,738)
(P
=62,053,223)

2014

5.07%
5.37%

4.56%
5.07%

4.41%
4.56%

6.00%
6.00%

6.00%
6.00%

8.00%
6.00%

Discount rates

Salary increase rates
2015
P7,280,197
=
(131,098,662)
(P
=123,818,465)

2015

2016

The retirement assets and liabilities recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position as of December 31 follows:
2016
P
=925,002,528
(862,949,305)
P
=62,053,223

2015

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of each significant assumption on the
defined benefit obligation as at the reporting period, assuming all other assumption were held constant:

The Group expects to contribute P
=112.9 million to the Fund in 2017.

Present value of defined benefit obligations
Fair value of plan assets

2016

Increase
(decrease)
+ 0.5%
- 0.5%
+ 1.0%
- 1.0%

Effect on
defined benefit
obligation
(in millions)
(P
=40.0)
40.0

2016
P
=123,818,465
90,447,147
(14,062,849)
–
(138,149,540)
P
=62,053,223

2015
=92,734,413
P
83,282,628
45,216,989
(996,792)
(96,418,773)
=123,818,465
P

2016
P
=639,694,359
109,899,229
32,762,151
72,701,335
8,842,041
(949,810)
P
=862,949,305

2015
=403,193,520
P
68,007,525
26,143,605
277,634,351
5,485,725
(855,306)
=779,609,420
P

The plan assets are being held by the RCBC Trust and Investment Division. The investing decisions of the plan assets are made by
the authorized officers of the Parent Company.
The plan assets consist of the following:






87.5
(86.2)

Shown below is the maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments:
2016
Expected
Benefit Payment
P
=200,960,228
195,365,164
453,790,735
664,449,115
825,481,131
6,980,864,312

Less than one year
More than one to five years
More than five to ten years
More than 10 to 15 years
More than 15 to 20 years
More than 20 years

2015
Expected
Benefit Payment
=190,494,017
P
226,397,075
371,885,358
658,340,691
727,179,531
6,279,583,057

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 21 years as of December 31, 2016 and 2015.

The major categories and fair value of the plan assets are as follows:
Investments in:
Government securities
Equity securities
Debt and other securities
Cash and cash equivalents
Interest and other receivables
Accrued trust fees and other payables

+ 1.0%
- 1.0%

89.8
(89.8)

Movements in the net retirement liabilities follow:
At January 1
Pension expense
Remeasurement loss (gain)
Benefits paid directly by the Group
Contributions
At December 31

Increase
(decrease)
+ 0.5%
- 0.5%

Effect on
defined benefit
obligation
(in millions)
(P
=38.7)
39.1

Investment in government securities - includes investment in Philippine Retail Treasury Bonds (RTBs) and Fixed Rate Treasury
Notes (FXTNs).
Investment in equity securities - includes investment in common and preferred shares traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange.
Investment in debt and other securities - include investment in long-term debt notes and retail bonds.
Cash and cash equivalents - include savings and time deposit.
Interest and other receivables - pertain to interest and dividends receivable on the investments in the fund.

29. Earnings (Loss) Per Share
The following table presents information necessary to calculate earnings per share:

Net income (loss)
Weighted average number of common shares
Earnings per share - basic/diluted

2015
2016
=202,734,329
(P
=847,701,016) P
1,036,281,485 1,036,281,485
=0.1956
P
(P
=0.8180)

2014
P918,273,849
=
1,036,281,485
=0.8861
P

The exercise price of unexercised stock options is still higher than the average market price during the year making the options antidilutive, hence, no diluted earnings per share is calculated.
The weighted average number of common shares is computed as follows:

Number of common shares issued and
outstanding
Less treasury shares

2016

2015

2014

1,036,401,386
119,901
1,036,281,485

1,036,401,386
119,901
1,036,281,485

1,036,401,386
119,901
1,036,281,485

The management performed an Asset-Liability Matching Study (ALM) annually. The overall investment policy and strategy of the
Group’s defined benefit plan is guided by the objective of achieving an investment return which, together with contributions, ensures
that there will be sufficient assets to pay retirement benefits as they fall due while also mitigating the various risk of the plans.
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Domestic

Foreign

2015
Combined

Assets
Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Total Assets

=15,101,257
P
7,921,257
=23,022,514
P

=9,388,522
P
2,973,739
=12,362,261
P

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Total Liabilities

=14,940,421
P
1,631,099
=16,571,520
P

30. Segment Information
For management purposes, the Group is organized into business units based on geographical location, which comprises of two main
groupings as follows:
1. Domestic - all transactions and contracts entered in the Philippines
2. Foreign - all transactions and contracts entered outside the Philippines
 EEI Limited - incorporated in British Virgin Islands
 Clear Jewel Investments, Ltd. - incorporated in British Virgin Islands
 EEI Corporation (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. - incorporated in Singapore
 EEI-Nouvelle Caledonie SARL - incorporated in New Caledonia
 Nimaridge Investments, Limited - incorporated in British Virgin Islands
 EEI Corporation (Guam) - incorporated in the United States of America
 Al Rushaid Construction Company Limited - incorporated in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
Management monitors construction revenue and segment net income for the purpose of making decision about resources allocation.
Segment performance is evaluated based on net income and construction revenue, which is accounted for differently in the
consolidated statements of income.
Segment reporting is consistent in all periods presented as there are no changes in the structure of the Group’s internal organization
that will cause the composition of its reportable segment to change.
Transfer prices between operating segments are on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties.
(In thousand pesos)
Domestic

Foreign

2016
Combined

Assets
Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Total Assets

P
=13,704,724
7,980,809
P
=21,685,533

P
=5,319,706
2,007,796
P
=7,327,502

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Total Liabilities

P
=13,536,830
1,286,278
P
=14,823,108

Revenue
Direct cost
Operating expenses
Interest expense
Share in net income (losses) of
associates and joint ventures
Other income (charges)
Income before tax
Provision for income tax
Net income (loss)
Other disclosures
Depreciation and
amortization
Capital expenditures
Interest income
Investments in associates and
joint ventures

Elimination

Consolidated

P
=19,024,430
9,988,605
P
=29,013,035

(P
=5,456,240)
(3,353,701)
(8,809,941)

P
=13,568,190
6,634,904
P
=20,203,094

P
=5,507,083
884,721
P
=6,391,804

P
=19,043,913
2,170,999
P
=21,214,912

(P
=5,970,822)
(884,721)
(6,855,543)

P
=13,073,091
1,286,278
P
=14,359,369

P
=15,155,294
(13,279,229)
(1,074,302)
(164,728)

P
=6,837,351
(9,703,031)
(600,866)
−

P
=21,992,645
(22,982,260)
(1,675,168)
(164,728)

(P
=7,157,053)
10,022,732
588,748
1,955

P
=14,835,592
(12,959,528)
(1,086,420)
(162,773)

99,989
199,827
936,851
(225,863)
P
=710,988

(1,416,119)
(92,428)
(4,975,093)
−
(P
=4,975,093)

(1,316,130)
107,399
(4,038,242)
(225,863)
(P
=4,264,105)

‒
(40,265)
3,416,117
286
P
=3,416,403

(1,316,130)
67,134
(622,125)
(225,577)
(P
=847,702)

P
=633,612

P
=−

P
=633,612

P
=−

P
=633,612

734,971
63,279

−
5

734,971
63,284

−
(1,955)

734,971
61,329

702,533

567,403

1,299,936

−

1,269,936

Revenue
Direct cost
Operating expenses
Interest expense
Share in net losses of associates
and joint ventures
Other income (charges)
Income before tax
Provision for income tax
Net income
Other disclosures
Depreciation and amortization
Capital expenditures
Interest income
Investments in associates and joint
ventures

Elimination

Consolidated

=24,489,779
P
10,894,996
=35,384,775
P

(P
=9,689,393)
(3,223,649)
(P
=12,913,042)

=14,800,386
P
7,671,347
=22,471,733
P

=7,283,170
P
958,834
=8,242,004
P

=22,223,591
P
2,589,933
=24,813,524
P

(P
=8,164,199)
(958,834)
(P
=9,123,033)

=14,059,392
P
1,631,099
=15,690,491
P

P19,496,674
=
(17,106,428)
(846,318)
(140,207)

P12,352,910
=
(13,700,845)
(714,831)
−

P31,849,584
=
(30,807,273)
(1,561,149)
(140,207)

(P
=12,870,655)
14,064,630
704,511
3,781

P18,978,929
=
(16,742,643)
(856,638)
(136,426)

(2,573)
69,874
1,471,022
(433,597)
=1,037,425
P

(673,737)
183,098
(2,553,405)
−
(P
=2,553,405)

(676,310)
252,972
(1,082,383)
(433,597)
(P
=1,515,980)

‒
(183,552)
1,718,715
−
=1,718,715
P

(676,310)
69,420
636,332
(433,597)
=202,735
P

=520,730
P
1,139,239
31,481

=−
P
−
4

=520,730
P
1,139,239
31,485

602,543

1,663,397

2,265,940

−

2,265,940

Domestic

Foreign

2014
Combined

Elimination

Consolidated

Assets
Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Total Assets

=12,106,920
P
6,045,323
=18,152,243
P

=9,212,963
P
3,542,709
=12,755,672
P

=21,319,883
P
9,588,032
=30,907,915
P

(P
=9,428,687)
(3,126,855)
(P
=12,555,542)

=11,891,196
P
6,461,177
=18,352,373
P

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Total Liabilities

=12,238,734
P
870,836
=13,109,570
P

=5,722,524
P
858,806
=6,581,330
P

=17,961,258
P
1,729,642
=19,690,900
P

(P
=7,139,179)
(858,806)
(P
=7,997,985)

=10,822,079
P
870,836
=11,692,915
P

P17,286,602
=
(15,414,821)
(789,306)
(132,042)

P14,589,606
=
(12,349,933)
(1,371,306)
−

P31,876,208
=
(27,764,754)
(2,160,612)
(132,042)

(P
=14,796,321)
12,414,447
1,371,836
8,359

P17,079,887
=
(15,350,307)
(788,776)
(123,683)

423,796
154,922
1,529,151
(296,814)
=1,232,337
P

−
(106,878)
761,489
(103,244)
=658,245
P

423,796
48,044
2,290,640
(400,058)
=1,890,582
P

−
29,370
(972,309)
−
(P
=972,309)

423,796
77,414
1,318,331
(400,058)
=918,273
P

Revenue
Direct cost
Operating expenses
Interest expense
Share in net income of associates
and joint ventures
Other income (charges)
Income before tax
Provision for income tax
Net income
Other disclosures
Depreciation and amortization
Capital expenditures
Interest income
Investments in associates and joint
ventures

=407,908
P
501,285
41,169

=−
P
−
284

=407,908
P
501,285
41,453

1,706,353

232,746

1,939,099

=−
P
−
(2,734)

=−
P
−
(6,371)
−

=520,730
P
1,139,239
28,751

=407,908
P
501,285
35,082
1,939,099

Notes to operating segments:
a.
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Intersegment revenue, cost and expenses, assets and liabilities are eliminated on consolidation. These are accounted for under
PFRSs.
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b.

Other income (charges) consist of:

Interest income
Other income
Foreign exchange gain (loss) - net

2016
P
= 61,329,134
9,262,881
(3,457,907)
P
= 67,134,108

2015
=28,750,588
P
70,794,563
(30,124,959)
=69,420,192
P

2014
=35,082,174
P
42,212,202
119,170
=77,413,546
P

The accumulated earnings of subsidiaries which are included in the Group’s retained earnings amounted to P
=888.6 million
and P
=2,284.0 million as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, are not available for dividend declaration. Retained earnings
are further restricted for payment of dividends to the extent of cost of treasury shares amounting to P
=3.7 million as of December 31,
2016 and 2015 and deferred tax assets amounting to P
=67.0 million and P
=74.2 million as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Retained earnings available for dividend declaration amounted to P
=3.0 billion and P
=2.8 billion as of December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively.
The Group takes into consideration the financing requirements of its construction projects when deciding the amount to be declared as
dividends.

c.

The foreign segment above includes the equity in net earnings (losses) from ARCC.

d.

There were no concentration of revenue for major customer that reached the 10% threshold in 2016 and 2015. The foreign
segment has revenue from one major customer that meets the 10% threshold in 2014 amounting to P
=1.8 billion.
33. Financial Instruments

The Group’s common shares were registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on August 28, 1997. The total
number of shares registered with SEC at that time was 2,000 million with original issue price amounting to P
=1.0 per share. As of
December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Group had 3,189 and 3,207 shareholders on record, respectively.

Fair Value Information
Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, consultancy fees, receivable from sale of investment property, receivable from a
customer, due from related parties, miscellaneous deposits, bank loans, accounts payable and other current liabilities and due to
related parties
The carrying amounts of these instruments approximate fair values due to their short-term maturities and demand feature.

Capital Management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximize shareholder value.

Quoted AFS financial assets
Fair values of investments in equity shares listed with Philippine Stock Exchange amounting to P
=6.7 million and P
=9.9 million as of
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, were determined by reference to the quoted price in the stock exchange at the end of the
reporting period (Level 1 - quoted prices in active market).

31. Capital Stock

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.
The Group considers total equity as its capital.
The Group monitors capital using a debt-to-equity ratio, which is total liabilities divided by total equity. The Group’s policy is to
maintain a debt-to-equity ratio lower than 3:1.

Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities (a)
Equity (b)

2016
P
=13,073,090,932
1,286,278,452
14,359,369,384
5,843,724,759

2015
=14,059,392,182
P
1,631,098,662
15,690,490,844
6,781,242,557

2.46:1

2.31:1

Debt to Equity Ratio (a/b)

Fair values of investments in club/golf shares amounting to P
=17.5 million and P
=19.9 million as of December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively, were determined by reference to the price of the most recent transaction at the end of the reporting period (Level 2 significant observable inputs).
Receivable from EEI RFI
The fair values of the receivable amounting to P
=225.3 million and P
=273.9 million as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively,
were estimated as the present value of all future cash flows discounted using the applicable rates for similar types of loans (Level 2 significant observable inputs). Discount rates used in 2016 and 2015 were 4.73% and 4.85%, respectively.
Long-term debt
The fair values of the interest-bearing long-term loans amounting to P
=1,512.2 million and P
=1,796.0 million as of December 31, 2016
and 2015, respectively, were estimated as the present value of all future cash flows discounted using the applicable rates for similar
types of loans (Level 2 - significant observable inputs). Discount rates used in 2016 and 2015 were 4.73% and 4.85%, respectively.

34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The main purpose of the Group’s financial instruments is to raise finances for the Group’s operations.

32. Retained Earnings
The details of the Group’s declaration of cash dividends for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 are as follow:
Date of BOD
Approval
March 4, 2016
March 4, 2016

Amount
=103,628,149
P
103,628,148
=207,256,297
P

Amount
per share
Record date
=0.10 April 8, 2016
P
0.10 September 1, 2016

Payment Date
April 29, 2016
September 26, 2016

Credit Risk
The exposure to credit risk on its receivables relates primarily to the inability of project owners to fully settle the unpaid balance of
contract receivables and other claims owed to the Group. Credit risk is managed in accordance with the Group’s credit risk policy
which requires the evaluation of the creditworthiness of the project owners by engaging the service of an accredited third party credit
analyst.
The Group does not have any significant concentration of credit risk. Its gross maximum exposure to credit risk is equivalent to the
carrying value of its financial assets as presented in the consolidated statements of financial position.

March 4, 2015
March 4, 2015

=103,640,139
P
103,640,138
=207,280,277
P

=0.10
P
0.10

April 8, 2015
September 1, 2015

April 30, 2015
September 25, 2015

March 21, 2014
March 21, 2014
March 21, 2014
March 21, 2014

=51,820,070
P
51,820,069
51,820,069
51,820,069
=207,280,277
P

=0.05
P
0.05
0.05
0.05

April 7,2014
June 2, 2014
September 1, 2014
December 1, 2014

April 28, 2014
June 27, 2014
September 26, 2014
December 23, 2014

Under the Tax Code of the Philippines, publicly listed companies are allowed to accumulate retained earnings in excess of capital
stock and are exempt from improperly accumulated earnings tax.
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The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign currency risk. The policies for
managing these risks are summarized as follows:

Credit risk is managed since the titles of the properties sold by the Group from its real estate operations are retained until receivables
are fully collected and the fair values of these properties held as collateral are sufficient to cover the carrying values of the receivables.
There can be some credit exposures on project commitments and contingencies as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 represented by
work accomplishments on backlog of projects which are not yet invoiced. These exposures are, however, limited to a few months
work accomplishment as work are frozen as soon as the Group is able to determine that the risk of non-collection materializes. This
risk is, however, mitigated by the Group’s contractor’s lien on the project. A contractor’s lien is the legal right of a contractor to
takeover the project in-progress and has priority in the settlement of contractor’s receivables and claims on the project in the event of
insolvency of the project owner. The Group assesses that the value of projects in-progress is usually higher than receivables from and
future commitments with the project owners (see Note 7).
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cover its short-term and long-term funding requirements, the Group intends to use internally generated funds and available short-term
and long-term credit facilities. Credit lines are obtained from BOD-designated banks at amounts based on financial forecasts
approved by BOD.

The analyses of loans and receivables follow:

Trade receivables
Consultancy fees
Receivable from sale of
investment properties
Other receivables
Due from related parties
Receivable from a customer
Miscellaneous deposits
Receivable from EEI
Retirement Fund, Inc.

Trade receivables
Consultancy fees
Receivable from sale of
investment properties
Other receivables
Due from related parties
Receivable from a customer
Miscellaneous deposits
Receivable from EEI
Retirement Fund, Inc.

Neither
Past Due
nor Impaired
P
= 3,831,588,103
−

2016
Past Due but Not Impaired
30 to <60
60 to <90
<30 days
days
days
P
=614,642,795 P
= 264,430,835
P
= 93,344,304
−
−
−

>90 days
P
= 976,272,142
305,946,232

Impaired
Financial
Assets
P
= 35,347,628
−

Total
P
= 5,815,625,807
305,946,232

−
3,149,431
−
−
42,348,385

−
8,367,165
−
−
3,762,427

30,113,684
60,540,763
79,415,085
380,296,805
49,071,313

−
266,388
P
= 93,875,361 P
= 1,327,982,578

−
P
= 47,477,220

223,266,388
P
= 6,944,276,077

30,113,684
47,459,046
79,415,085
380,296,805
408,678

−
468,439
−
−
1,901,439

−
695,782
−
−
520,227

223,000,000
P
= 4,592,281,401

−
P
= 617,012,673

−
P
= 265,646,844

<30 days
=609,266,851
P
−

2015
Past Due but Not Impaired
30 to <60
60 to <90
days
days
=250,611,760
P
=150,595,687
P
−
−

Neither
Past Due
nor Impaired
=3,680,446,984
P
−

−
400,900
−
−
130,157

>90 days
=542,547,570
P
289,688,635

Impaired
Financial
Assets
=67,921,840
P
−

Total
=5,301,390,692
P
289,688,635

25,911,485
16,621,017
74,552,130
162,326,173
9,326,024

−
1,182,125
−
−
−

−
1,865,930
−
−
−

−
571,129
−
−
2,383,047

−
37,041,447
−
−
34,630,986

−
7,262,852
−
−
3,762,427

25,911,485
64,544,500
74,552,130
162,326,173
50,102,484

273,361,532
=4,242,545,345
P

−
=610,448,976
P

−
=252,477,690
P

−
=153,549,863
P

−
=903,908,638
P

−
=78,947,119
P

273,361,532
=6,241,877,631
P

The risk that past due receivables from project owners will not be collected is mitigated by the fact that the Group can resort to carry
out its contractor’s lien over the project with varying degrees of effectiveness depending on the jurisprudence applicable on or country
location of the project. Trade and retention receivables from project owners are normally high standard because of the
creditworthiness of project owners and the collection remedy of contractor’s lien accorded contractor in certain cases.
The tables below summarize the credit quality of the Group’s neither past due nor impaired loans and receivables.

Trade receivables
Receivable from sale of investment properties
Other receivables
Due from related parties
Receivable from customer
Miscellaneous deposits
Receivable from EEI-RFI

Trade receivables
Receivable from sale of investment properties
Other receivables
Due from related parties
Receivable from customer
Miscellaneous deposits
Receivable from EEI-RFI

2016
Neither Past Due nor Impaired
High Grade
Standard Grade
P
=1,151,690,372
P
=2,679,897,731
30,113,684
−
45,087,778
2,371,268
79,415,085
−
380,296,805
−
380,000
28,678
223,000,000
−
P
=1,909,983,724
P
=2,682,297,677
2015
Neither Past Due nor Impaired
High Grade
Standard Grade
=1,395,194,315
P
=2,285,252,669
P
25,911,485
−
14,758,656
1,862,361
74,552,130
−
162,326,173
−
8,279,930
1,046,094
273,361,532
−
=1,954,384,221
P
=2,288,161,124
P

Total
P
=3,831,588,103
30,113,684
47,459,046
79,415,085
380,296,805
408,678
223,000,000
P
=4,592,281,401

Total
=3,680,446,984
P
25,911,485
16,621,017
74,552,130
162,326,173
9,326,024
273,361,532
=4,242,545,345
P

Neither past due nor impaired trade receivables, consultancy fees, other receivables and miscellaneous deposits are classified into
‘high grade’ and ‘standard grade’. Neither past due nor impaired cash and cash equivalents, due from related parties and receivables
from EEI-RFI are normally ‘high grade’ in nature. The Group sets financial assets as ‘high grade’ based on the Group’s positive
collection experience. On the other hand, ‘standard grade’ are those which have credit history of default in payments.

The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Group’s financial assets. The maturity groupings are based on the remaining
period from the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date.

Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued
expenses*
Bank loans
Peso loan
Interest
Long-term debt
Peso loan
Interest
Due to related parties
Financial Assets
Cash
Cash on hand and in banks
Short-term investments
Receivables
Trade receivables
Consultancy fees
Other receivables
Due from related parties
Liquidity gap (position)
*Excludes statutory liabilities

Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued
expenses*
Bank loans
Peso loan
Interest
Long-term debt
Peso loan
Interest
Due to related parties
Financial Assets
Cash
Cash on hand and in banks
Short-term investments
Receivables
Trade receivables
Consultancy fees
Other receivables
Due from related parties

On demand

< 1 year

2016
1 to < 2 years

> 2 years

P
=2,733,272,411

P
=683,597,682

P
=685,736,403

P
=992,297

P
=4,103,598,793

−
−

2,950,000,000
12,760,417

−
−

−
−

2,950,000,000
12,760,417

−
−
164,538,085
2,897,810,496

285,714,286
67,287,712
−
3,999,360,097

285,714,286
53,490,683
−
1,024,941,372

928,571,428
81,004,361
−
1,010,568,086

1,500,000,000
201,782,756
164,538,085
8,932,680,051

1,027,901,738
1,116,489

−
−

−
−

−
−

1,027,901,738
1,116,489

3,731,210,096
8,466,967
305,946,232
−
10,477,905
874,352
−
−
4,047,634,233
9,341,319
(P
=48,274,136) P
=1,015,600,053

7,355,335
−
859,352
−
8,214,687
P
=1,002,353,399

5,780,278,179
305,946,232
52,173,598
79,415,085
7,246,831,321
P
=1,685,848,730

2,033,245,781
−
39,961,989
79,415,085
3,181,641,082
(P
=283,830,586)

Total

On demand

< 1 year

2015
1 to < 2 years

> 2 years

Total

=2,051,815,634
P

=1,623,343,874
P

=655,086,898
P

=3,048,785
P

=4,333,295,191
P

−
−

3,330,000,000
72,170,878

−
−

−
−

3,330,000,000
72,170,878

−
−
37,352,425
2,089,168,059

307,272,794
41,648,848
−
5,374,436,394

1,179,583,993
−
−
1,834,670,891

298,857,498
−
−
301,906,283

1,785,714,285
41,648,848
37,352,425
9,600,181,627

=1,269,163,853
P
1,078,227

=−
P
−

=−
P
−

=−
P
−

=1,269,163,853
P
1,078,227

2,365,729,240
−
6,876,235
74,552,130
3,717,399,685

2,817,476,103
289,688,635
31,953,720
−
3,139,118,458

15,210,985
−
13,779,395
−
28,990,380

35,052,524
−
4,672,298
−
39,724,822

5,233,468,852
289,688,635
57,281,648
74,552,130
6,925,233,345

*Excludes statutory liabilities

Foreign currency risk
Currency risk is the potential decline in the value of the financial instruments due to exchange rate fluctuations. The Group’s currency
arise mainly from cash and receivables which are denominated in a currency other than the Group’s functional currency or will be
denominated in such a currency.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its payment obligations as they fall due. The Group seeks to manage its
liquidity risk to be able to meet its operating cash flow requirements, finance capital expenditures and service maturing debts. To
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The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US dollar (USD), Singapore dollar (SGD),
Euro (EUR) and Japan yen (YEN) currency rates, with all variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in
the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities):

USD
SGD
EUR
YEN
GBP

2016
Percentage increase/
decrease in foreign
currency
+ 2.1%
+ 4.1%
+ 1.9%
+ 3.9%
+ 1.8%

USD
SGD
EUR
YEN
GBP

- 2.1%
- 4.1%
- 1.9%
- 3.9%
- 1.8%

On October 26, 2016, ARCC submitted a claim of SR166.0 million (P
=2,204.6 million) of the prolongation and disruption cost
due to the continued failures and delays attributable to the main contractor Snamprogetti.

2015
Percentage increase/
decrease in foreign
currency
+2.5%
+2.3%
+2.6%
+2.3%
+13.4%

Effect on profit
before tax
(in PHP)
P
=1,316,205
495,498
15,917
948
214

Effect on profit
before tax
(in PHP)
=1,946,165
P
408,063
76,098
2,722,936
1,880

-2.5%
-2.3%
-2.6%
-2.3%
-13.4%

(P
=1,316,205)
(495,498)
(15,917)
(948)
(214)

On May 31, 2016, ARCC entered into a settlement agreement with Snamprogetti wherein the latter will pay the former SR141.0
million (P
=1,872.6 million) for the aforementioned claims.

As of March 10, 2017, ARCC and Snamprogetti have not agreed on the final settlement amount .

(P
=1,946,165)
(408,063)
(76,098)
(2,722,936)
(1,880)

The forecasted movements in percentages used were sourced by management from an affiliated bank.
The foreign currency denominated financial assets and financial liabilities in original currencies and equivalents to the functional and
presentation currency are as follows:
2016
USD1
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Financial liabilities
Accounts payable and
accrued expenses

$1,212,826
196,780
1,409,606

156,078
$1,253,528

SGD2

EUR3

YEN4

GBP5

Equivalents in
PHP

S$353,997
−
353,997

€16,740
−
16,740

¥57,919
−
57,919

£−
−
−

P
=73,353,633
9,783,902
83,137,535

−
S$353,997

−
€16,740

−
¥57,919

200
(£200)

7,772,372
P
=75,365,163

1

Exchange rate used - =
P 49.72 to US$1
Exchange rate used - =
P 34.35 to S$1
Exchange rate used - =
P 51.84 to €1
4
Exchange rate used - =
P 0.42 to ¥1
5
Exchange rate used - =
P 60.87 to £1
2
3

2015

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Financial liabilities
Accounts payable and
accrued expenses

USD1

SGD2

EUR3

YEN4

GBP5

Equivalents in
PHP

$211,901
697,691
909,592

S$531,071
−
531,071

€16,731
40,800
57,531

¥62,202,248
245,838,594
308,040,842

£−
−
−

P52,898,100
=
130,821,382
183,719,482

483,434
$426,158

8,599
S$522,472

167
−
€57,364 ¥308,040,842

200
23,061,319
(£200) P
=160,658,163

1

Exchange rate used - =
P 47.06 to US$1
Exchange rate used - =
P 33.52 to S$1
3
Exchange rate used - =
P 51.74 to €1
4
Exchange rate used - =
P 0.39 to ¥1
5
Exchange rate used - =
P 70.18 to £1
2

35. Other Matters

100

a.

In 2016, Equipment Engineers, Inc. acquired 60% ownership in JPSAI for P
=30.0 million. JPSAI was incorporated on December
19, 2016 and is engaged in the business of rental and supplying scaffolding and formworks. As of March 10, 2017, JPSAI has
not yet started commercial operations.

b.

On April 30, 2016, ARCC filed a claim with the International Court of Arbitration in London for the RP2 Naphtha and Aromatics
Package Project in respect of the delay, disruption and acceleration of works to complete the Project. Subsequently, additional
claim of SR100.0 million (P
=1,328.1 million) has been submitted to the main contractor, Snamprogetti, for the associated
prolongation cost for further extension of Mechanical Completion from April 30, 2016 to August 25, 2016 due to continuing
delays attributable to Snamprogetti.
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INVESTOR INFORMATION
SHARE LISTING
The shares of EEI Corporation’s common stock are traded at the Philippine Stock Exchange
(ticker symbol: EEI). Shares are available to foreign investors up to a maximum of 40% of the
outstanding capital stock.
As of December 31, 2016, the number of common share issued and subscribed is 1,036,401,386.
Of these issued shares, 41.23%, or 427,316,146 are owned by the public.
There are approximately 3,189 stockholders.

INVESTOR INQUIRIES
For questions regarding shareholder accounts, stock certificates, dividends, and account status,
please write or call the Company’s Stock Transfer Agent:
RCBC Stock Transfer
GPL (Grepalife) Building
221 Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue, Makati City
Tel No.: (+632) 894-9000

QUARTERLY HIGH, LOW, AND CLOSING PRICES OF EEI SHARES

2016
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

High
7.75
8.02
10.16
7.90

Low
5.20
7.08
7.35
5.86

Close
7.60
7.69
7.75
6.12

A soft copy of the 2016 EEI Annual Report can be accessed at our website at www.eei.com.ph
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